
Coral Springs 

Improvement District 

 

Agenda 

 

May 21, 2018 

Agenda Page 1



               

Coral Springs Improvement District 

10300 NW 11th Manor, Coral Springs, Florida • Phone: 954.753.0380 • www.csidfl.org 

 

May 14, 2018 

 

Board of Supervisors  

Coral Springs Improvement District 

 

Dear Board Members: 

 

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs Improvement District 

will be held on May 21, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. at the District Offices, 10300 NW 11th Manor, 

Coral Springs, Florida.  Following is the advance agenda for the meeting. 

 

1.    Roll Call 

2.    Approval of the Minutes of the April 26, 2018 Meeting 

3.    Audience Comments 

4.    Approval of Financial Statements for April 2018 

5.    Distribution of the Proposed General Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2019 and 

Consideration of Resolution 2018-10, Approving the Budget and Setting a 

Public Hearing 

6.    Consideration of Engagement Letter with Keefe McCullough to Perform the    

Fiscal Year 2018 Financial Audit 

7.    Consideration of Award of Contract D 2018-02 for Two Sprayers for 

Drainage Department (Placeholder) 

8.    Consideration of Analytical Services from Florida Spectrum Environmental 

Services, Inc. Extending the Terms of the Collier County Contract to CSID 

for Two Years 

9.    Consideration of Work Authorization #143 for Site 12 Canal Bank 

Stabilization  

10.    Ratification of Permit Approval for CVS at 11375 W. Atlantic Boulevard 

11.    Discussion of Assessment Mailing 

12.  Staff Reports  

A. Manager – Ken Cassel 

B. Engineer – Rick Olson  

C. Department Reports  

 Operations – Dan Daly 

 Utility Billing Work Orders 

 Utilities Update (David McIntosh) 

 Water – Joe Stephens (Report Included) 

 Wastewater – Tim Martin (Report Included) 

 Stormwater – Shawn Frankenhauser  (Report Included) 

 Field – Curt Dwiggins (Report Included) 

 Maintenance Report – Pedro Vasquez (Report Included 

 

Agenda Page 2



               

Coral Springs Improvement District 

10300 NW 11th Manor, Coral Springs, Florida • Phone: 954.753.0380 • www.csidfl.org 

 

 Human Resources – Jan Zilmer  

 Motion to Accept Department Reports 

D. Attorney  

13. Supervisors’ Requests 

14. Adjournment 

 

Any supporting documents not included in the agenda package will be distributed at the 

meeting.  If you have any questions prior to the meeting, please contact me. 

 

Sincerely,  
 

Kenneth Cassel 
 

Kenneth Cassel/sd 

District Manager 

 

cc: District Staff  

 Stephen Bloom   

 Seth Behn    

 Terry Lewis  

 Beverley Servé  

 Jamie Barreto  

Rick Olson  

 

Agenda Page 3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Second Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 4



   

Unapproved Minutes 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

 A regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs Improvement District 

was held on Thursday, April 26, 2018 at 3:01 p.m. at the District Office, 10300 NW 11th Manor, 

Coral Springs, Florida.   

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 

  

 Martin Shank President 

 Duane Holland  Vice President  

 Nick St. Cavish  Secretary 

      

 Also present were: 

  

 Kenneth Cassel District Manager  

 Terry Lewis  District Counsel  

 Dan Daly Director of Operations 

 Jan Zilmer  Human Resources 

 David McIntosh Director of Utilities 

 Marta Rubio Accounting 

 Rick Olson District Engineer 

 Pedro Vasquez  Maintenance Manager 

 Joe Stephens Water Department 

 Tim Martin  Wastewater Department 

 Shawn Frankenhauser  Drainage Department 

 Curt Dwiggins  Field Superintendent 

 Dave Schuman Globaltech 

        

 The following is a summary of the minutes and actions taken during the April 26, 2018 

CSID Board of Supervisors Meeting.  

    

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Cassel called the meeting to order and called the roll. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the March 19, 

2018 Meeting 

 Each Board member received a copy of the minutes of the March 19, 2018 meeting and 

Dr. Shank requested any corrections, additions or deletions. 

 There being none,  

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor the minutes of the March 19, 2018 meeting were 

approved. 

Agenda Page 5



April 26, 2018  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 2 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Financial Statements for 

March 2018 

 There being no questions or comments, 

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor the financials for March 2018 were approved. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Right-of-Way Permit for 

Installation of 6” PVC Bridge Attachment 

at Canals L-106 and Canal C-1 

  Mr. Cassel reviewed the plans submitted by Hotwire Communications.   

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor the right-of-way permit was approved. 

  

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Assessment Calendar/Public Hearing 

Update  

 The following was discussed: 

 Mr. Lewis stated the preliminary data from the Property Appraiser’s office will not be 

available until June 1, 2018. 

 The public hearing can be held right before the July 16, 2018 meeting.  The meeting 

will need to be held at a different venue to ensure there is sufficient space for the 

public.   

 Discussion ensued regarding scheduling.  The Board will email Mr. Cassel their 

schedules so he can coordinate the date of the public hearing.   

  

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Resolution 2018-8, Confirming the 

Board’s Intention to Utilize the Uniform 

Method for the Levy Collection and 

Enforcement of Non-Ad Valorem 

Assessments for Water and Wastewater 

Assessment  

 The above item was removed from the agenda. 

  

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINES Change Order #2 with Stantec for Water 

and Sewer Connection Fee Study for 

$25,478 

 Ms. Rubio noted the total agreement figure is incorrect.  It should be $52,969. 

 

Agenda Page 6



April 26, 2018  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 3 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor Change Order #2 with Stantec for a cost of $25,478 was 

approved.  

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Well Maintenance 

Contract with AMPS, Piggybacking Off 

of Martin County Contract 

 Mr. Stephens stated the District is currently piggybacking off of the City of Sunrise’s 

contract, which will expire later this year.  The contract with Martin County is good for three 

years with two optional, one year renewals. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor the well maintenance contract with AMPS, piggybacking 

off of the Martin County contract, was approved. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Lift Station Repairs, 

Piggybacking Off of Martin County 

Contract 

 A. Lift Station #13 

 B. Lift Station #17 

 Mr. Dwiggins reviewed the repairs needed for Lift Stations #13 and #17.  The piggyback 

contract is with Trio.  Globaltech also submitted a work authorization for the repairs at a total 

cost of $321,424.40, which is approximately $20,000 less than Trio’s proposal.  His 

recommendation is to go with Globaltech.   

  

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor this item was removed from the agenda. 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Work Authorizations 

 F. Work Authorization #142 for Lift Station 13 and 17 Rehabilitation for a 

Total Cost of $321,424.40 

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor Work Authorization #142 was approved at total cost of 

$321,424.40. 

 

 A. Work Authorization #138 for Ground Storage Tank Hydraulic Assessment 

for a Total Cost of $15,600 

 The Board reviewed Work Authorization #138, which is for a hydraulic assessment to 

diagnose how water moves between the tanks and then come up with a plan to improve or 

modify the tank piping.  

 

Agenda Page 7



April 26, 2018  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 4 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor Work Authorization #138 was approved for a total cost of 

$15,600. 

 

 B. Work Authorization #139 for Diesel Supply Line Replacement for a Total 

Cost of $37,760 

 The Board reviewed Work Authorization #139. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor Work Authorization #139 was approved for a total cost of 

$37,760. 

 

 C. Work Authorization #141 for WWTP Plat D Repairs for a Total Cost of 

$1,445,731.40 

 The Board reviewed the repair work under Work Authorization #141.   

 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor Work Authorization #141 was approved for a total cost of 

$1,445,731.40. 

 

 D. Amendment #1 to Work Authorization #118 for the Margate Interconnect 

Project for a Decrease of $20,000 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor Amendment #1 to Work Authorization #118 was approved 

for a total decrease of $20,000. 

 

 E. Amendment #1 to Work Authorization #124 for the Effluent Pump Station 

Electrical Improvements Project for a Decrease of $15,072 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor Amendment #1 to Work Authorization #124was approved 

for a total decrease of $15,072. 

  

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion Regarding Paver Incentive  

 Mr. St. Cavish stated he liked Mr. Daly’s idea to give an incentive of $150 for those who 

switch from asphalt or concrete to pavers.  Discussion ensued and there was consensus to provide 

a $250 incentive to the first 50 residents who switch to pavers per year.  A resolution will be 

drafted for consideration at the next meeting.   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 8



April 26, 2018  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 5 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Resolution 2018-9, Dedicating the 

Marjory Stoneman Douglas Park to the 

General Public  

     

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor Resolution 2018-9, dedicating the Marjory Stoneman 

Douglas Park to the general public, was adopted. 

 

 Discussion ensued and there was consensus to get feedback from the students and set up a 

date for a dedication ceremony.   

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports  

A. Manager – Ken Cassel  

 There being no report, the next item followed. 

 

 B. Engineer – Rick Olson  

 Mr. Olson reviewed his project status report, a copy of which is attached hereto and made 

a part of the public record. 

 Discussion ensued regarding the cause of bank erosion by other entities’ storm drains.  

Mr. Lewis suggested a hydrographic analysis.   

 

 C. Department Reports 

 Operations – Dan Daly 

 Utility Billing Work Orders 

 This item is for informational purposes only.  Mr. Daly reported the Consumer 

Confidence Report is being mailed out next week.  He also reported the School Board contacted 

him regarding Taravella High School’s utility fees. 

   

 Utilities Update (David McIntosh) 

  Mr. McIntosh reported debris management is still going on as a result of Hurricane Irma.  

The District’s site has been permitted since last November.  They applied to the County for an 

extension.  SWCD has until the end of May.  The County refuses to renew the license for the 

permit.   

 

 Water – Joe Stephens (Report Included) 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record.  

 

 

Agenda Page 9



April 26, 2018  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 6 

 Wastewater – Tim Martin (Report Included) 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record. 

  

 Stormwater –Shawn Frankenhauser (Report Included) 
 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record.   

 

 Field – Curt Dwiggins (Report Included) 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record. 

  

 Maintenance Report – Pedro Vasquez (Report Included) 

 A copy of the report was included in the agenda package and is attached hereto as part of 

the public record. 

 

 Human Resources – Jan Zilmer 

 Mr. Zilmer reported staff is 71 days accident free. 

 

D. Attorney  

 Discussion of Legislative Bill with Regard to Election Process 

 Mr. Lewis reported the legislation filed, which would have affected the District, was 

prevented from getting a hearing.  It died in its first committee of reference.  The 2019 legislation 

will not begin until the first Tuesday of March.  Discussion ensued regarding legislating to 

change the election process for the District and there was consensus to reach out to 

Representative Jacobs.   

 

 C. Department Reports (Continued) 

 Motion to Accept Department Reports 
  

On MOTION by Mr. St. Cavish seconded by Mr. Holland with all 

in favor the department reports were approved.   

 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Supervisors’ Requests  

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 10



April 26, 2018  Coral Springs Improvement District 

Unapproved Minutes 7 

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 There being no further business, 

  

On MOTION by Mr. Holland seconded by Mr. St. Cavish with all 

in favor the meeting was adjourned. 

 

 

 

     

Kenneth Cassel   Martin Shank 

Assistant Secretary    President  

Agenda Page 11



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fourth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 12



Agenda Page 13



Agenda Page 14



Agenda Page 15



Agenda Page 16



Agenda Page 17



Agenda Page 18



Agenda Page 19



Agenda Page 20



Agenda Page 21



Agenda Page 22



Agenda Page 23



Agenda Page 24



Agenda Page 25



Agenda Page 26



Agenda Page 27



Agenda Page 28



Agenda Page 29



Agenda Page 30



Agenda Page 31



Agenda Page 32



Agenda Page 33



Agenda Page 34



Agenda Page 35



Agenda Page 36



Agenda Page 37



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fifth Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 38



RESOLUTION 2018-10 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE CORAL 

SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT APPROVING THE PROPOSED 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 AND SETTING A 

PUBLIC HEARING THEREON PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 2004-469, LAWS 

OF FLORIDA AND FLORIDA LAW 

 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 12 of Chapter 2004-469, Laws of Florida, the District 

Manager has heretofore prepared and submitted to the Board a proposed General Fund budget for Fiscal 

Year 2019; a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has considered said proposed budget and desires to set the 

required public hearing thereon; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF THE CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 

 

 Section 1. The recitals above are true and correct and are hereby made a part of this 

Resolution. 

 Section 2. The budget proposed by the District Manager for Fiscal Year 2019 is hereby 

approved as the basis for conducting a public hearing to adopt said budget. 

 Section 3. A public hearing on said approved budget is hereby declared and set for the 

following date, hour and place: 

 

 Date: July 23, 2018 

 Hour: 3:00 PM 

  Place:  Courtyard by Marriott 

     620 N. University Drive 

    Coral Springs, Florida 33071 

 

 Section 4. The District Manager shall publish or have published notice of this public 

hearing in the manner prescribed by Chapter 2004-469, Laws of Florida. 

 

Section 5.   This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Springs Improvement 

District, this 21st day of May, 2018.  

 

      ________________________________________ 

 Martin Shank, President 

  

   

 Kenneth Cassel, Assistant Secretary 

Agenda Page 39



 

Exhibit A 

Agenda Page 40



      
     
       
 

 
 
 

Coral Springs Improvement District 

General Fund 

 

 

Proposed Budget 

Fiscal Year 2018/2019 

 

 

 

 

 

May 21, 2018 

Board of Supervisors Meeting 

 

Agenda Page 41



Coral Springs Improvement District
General Fund

Proposed Budget
Fiscal Year Ending 2019

  
 Actual Adopted Actual Proposed Total Proposed

   Description FYE Budget thru Next Projected thru Budget
2017 FYE 2018 3/31/2018 6 Months 9/30/2018 FYE 2019

REVENUES

Assessment Revenues  (Net)..budgeted 1,781,758    1,781,819    1,685,910    95,909          1,781,819      3,849,956    
Assessment Revenues..excess collected 30,168         -               -                 -               
Permit Review Fees 3,700           1,000           1,100           -                1,100             1,000           
Miscellaneous Revenue 25                -               -                 -               
Interest Income 20,838         12,000         21,375         7,000            28,375           20,000         
Unrealized Gain (Loss)-SBA -               -                 -               
Shared Personnel Revenue 31,950         32,909         16,455         16,454          32,909           33,896         
Carry Forward Assigned Funds 104,097       187,850       -               2,689,613     2,689,613      76,785         

Total Revenues 1,972,536    2,015,578    1,724,840    2,808,976     4,533,816      3,981,637    

EXPENDITURES

Administrative
Supervisor Fees 7,200           7,200           4,200           3,000            7,200             7,200           
Salaries and Wages 130,215       145,441       78,763         66,678          145,441         133,908       
Special Pay 220              266              271              -                271                238              
FICA Taxes 10,536         11,678         6,365           5,313            11,678           10,796         
Pension Expense 14,339         15,999         9,528           6,471            15,999           16,069         
Health Insurance 48,476         56,377         29,490         26,887          56,377           54,611         
Worker's Compensation Ins. 240              410              306              104               410                379              
Engineering Fees 32,124         30,000         6,200           23,800          30,000           30,000         
Legal Fees 41,410         36,000         29,942         30,000          59,942           60,000         
Special Consulting Services 70,024         56,887         78,395         30,000          108,395         100,000       
Annual Audit 7,800           7,850           7,900           -                7,900             10,500         
Actuarial Computation-OPEB -               435              -               2,520            2,520             2,772           
Management Fees 54,023         55,644         32,459         23,185          55,644           57,313         
Telephone Expense 3,024           3,175           1,512           1,663            3,175             3,334           
Postage 636              636              371              265               636                668              
Printing & Binding 1,249           1,200           600              600               1,200             1,260           
Administrative Building Costs 12,000         12,000         6,000           6,000            12,000           12,000         
Insurance 1,123           1,123           562              561               1,123             1,179           
Legal Advertising 1,161           2,000           -               2,000            2,000             2,000           
Contingencies 3,634           -               142              -                142                1,000           
EMS Assessment -                 
Computer Expense/Technology 20,250         29,400         14,621         14,779          29,400           29,400         
Digital Record Management 8,196           1,000           331              669               1,000             1,000           
Office Supplies 6,891           7,125           1,712           5,413            7,125             7,125           
Dues, Subscriptions, etal. 7,200           8,300           1,711           6,589            8,300             7,800           
Promotional Expense 243              4,800           -               4,800            4,800             4,800           
Capital Purchases -               -               -               -                -                 -               

    Total Administrative 482,214       494,946       311,381       261,297        572,678         555,352       

Page 1

Agenda Page 42



 Actual Adopted Actual Proposed Total Proposed
   Description FYE Budget thru Next Projected thru Budget

2017 FYE 2018 3/31/2018 6 Months 9/30/2018 FYE 2019

Field Operations
Salaries & Wages 251,911       257,579       144,672       112,907        257,579         278,553       
Special Pay 812              813              815              -                    815                813              
FICA Taxes 19,010         19,704         10,960         8,744            19,704           21,309         
Pension Expense 27,790         28,334         17,368         10,966          28,334           33,426         
Health Insurance 74,778         81,220         48,031         33,189          81,220           88,849         
Worker's comp Ins 8,994           14,270         10,673         3,597            14,270           15,433         
Water Quality Testing 2,152           2,400           1,076           1,076            2,152             3,000           
Communications-Radios/Cellphones 1,565           1,272           1,065           1,066            2,131             1,872           
Electric 1,278           1,411           590              780               1,370             1,411           
Rentals and Leases -                   -               -                   -                    -                     -               
Insurance 13,372         13,372         7,613           6,526            14,139           14,846         
R&M - General                                   5,288           53,410         9,597           43,813          53,410           54,010         
R&M - Culvert Inspection & Cleaning 19,500         69,500         -                   69,500          69,500           69,500         
R&M - Canal Dredging & Maintenance  900              -               -                   -                    -                     25,000         
R&M - Vegetation Management 2,160           15,000         -                   15,000          15,000           15,000         
Oper Supplies - General             65,211         1,025           1,877           1,877            3,754             3,825           
Oper Supplies - Chemicals         98,533         113,346       57,292         56,054          113,346         114,659       
Oper Supplies - Uniform Rental  1,884           1,760           864              896               1,760             1,823           
Oper Supplies - Motor Fuels       34,940         54,694         5,629           49,065          54,694           51,705         
Dues, Licenses, Schools 3,602           3,672           1,269           2,403            3,672             3,752           
Capital Outlay-Equipment 44,102         47,850         29,570         18,280          47,850           27,500         
Capital Improvements 62,540         140,000       35,956         104,044        140,000         1,000,000    
Hurricane Irma -                   -               191,379       2,245,059     2,436,438      -               

    Total Field Operations 740,322       920,632       576,296       2,784,842     3,361,138      1,826,285    

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,222,536    1,415,578    887,677       3,046,139     3,933,816      2,381,637    

Excess Revenues Over Expenditures 750,000       600,000       837,163       (237,163)       600,000         1,600,000    

Reserves
Reserved for 1st Qtr Operating 450,000       350,000       350,000       -                350,000         350,000       
Reserves for Designated Projects/Emergency 300,000       250,000       250,000       -                250,000         250,000       
Storm Damages Reserves -               -               -               -                -                 1,000,000    

Total Reserves 750,000       600,000       600,000       -                600,000         1,600,000    

Excess Revenues Over Expenditures & Reserves -               237,163       (237,163)       -                 -               

                                                                    Source: General Fund Assessment Methodology Study - 5/2018

Page 2

Agenda Page 43



 
 

 
 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
General Fund 

Proposed Budget 
Fiscal Year 2018 / 2019 

 
REVENUES: 
 
Assessments 
 
The District levies a Non-Ad Valorem Assessment on all taxable property within the 
Coral Springs Improvement District in order to fund operating and maintenance 
expenditures, and future reserves. Based on the following table: 
 

 
Source: Assessment Methodology Study – 5/2018 

 
 
Permit Review Fees 
 
Permit fees are based on prior year’s revenues. 
 
Interest Income 
 
Interest is earned on cash balances in the District’s funds on deposit in checking and 
money market accounts and in various certificates of deposit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 

Agenda Page 44



 
 

 
 

 
Coral Springs Improvement District 

General Fund 
Proposed Budget 

Fiscal Year 2018 / 2019 
 
 
 
Shared Personnel Revenue 
 
The District has entered into an interlocal agreement with Pinetree Water Control 
District. Under the provisions of that agreement the District provides the services of 
an appropriately licensed field supervisor to Pinetree. Budgeted revenue from this 
source is $33,896. 
 
 
Carry Forward Assigned Funds 
 
The District is planning to use prior year assigned funds to pay for planned capital 
purchases and repairs. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 
 

Agenda Page 45



 
 

 
 

 
Coral Springs Improvement District 

General Fund 
Proposed Budget 

Fiscal Year 2018 / 2019 
 
 
EXPENDITURES: 
 
Administrative: 
 
Supervisor Fees 
 
Board of Supervisors may be compensated $200 per meeting, not to exceed $2,400 
per year.  Based on 3 supervisors and 12 meetings per year, the amount should not 
exceed $7,200. 
 
Salaries and Wages 
 
The total amount of budgeted wages for this Fiscal Year is $133,908.   
 
Special Pay 
 
Special pay is a holiday bonus based on number of years of service.  Special pay is 
budgeted for $238. 
 
FICA Taxes 
FICA tax is established by the law and currently is 7.65%.  Based on salaries of 
$133,908 and Supervisors Fees of $7,200 FICA taxes are being budgeted for 
$10,796. 
 
Pension Expense 
 
The pension plan was established whereby the employer contributes into the plan 
annually.  Based on salaries of $133,908 pension expense is budgeted for $16,069. 
 
Health Insurance  
 
The District offers each employee Health, Life, Dental and Disability Insurance.  In 
addition, the board members are provided Health and Dental Insurance only.  The 
projected cost to be paid by the District for this fiscal year is $54,611. 
 
Worker’s Compensation Insurance 
 
The District’s Worker’s Compensation Insurance premium is budgeted for $379. 
 

 
 

Page 5 

Agenda Page 46



 
 

 
 

 
Coral Springs Improvement District 

General Fund 
Proposed Budget 

Fiscal Year 2018 / 2019 
 
EXPENDITURES: 
 
Administrative (Continued): 
 
Engineering Fees 
 
The District contracts for general engineering services on an annual basis.  Based 
on prior years’ experience, the projected amount for this Fiscal Year is $30,000. 
 
Legal Fees 
 
The District currently has a contract with Lewis Longman & Walker, P.A. as legal 
counsel for the District.  This contract includes preparation for monthly board 
meetings, contract review, etc.  Based on prior year’s experience the projected 
amount for this Fiscal Year is $60,000. 
 
Special Consulting Services 
 
The District will need to engage a consultant who specializes in legislative 
codification.  Certain District limitations relating to bidding threshold requirements, 
efficiencies, gains and benefits inherent in contract administration, and supervisor 
compensation levels need to be revised and updated.  Additional consulting may be 
needed to conduct workshop sessions involving staff and department managers.  
The total amount being budgeted is $100,000. 
 
Annual Audit 
 
The District is required by Florida Statutes to arrange for an independent audit of its 
financial records on an annual basis.  Based on the current activity level the amount 
is not expected to exceed $10,500. 
 
Actuarial Computation-OPEB 
 
Florida Statutes require the employer to make health coverage available to retirees 
at the employer’s group rate.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
requires a periodic actuarial assessment of the cost and liability associated with 
these benefits.  In June 2017 GASB 75 replaced and expanded GASB 45 reporting 
requirements.  The District is budgeting $2,772 for this assessment. 
 
 
 
 

Page 6 

Agenda Page 47



 
 

 
 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
General Fund 

Proposed Budget 
Fiscal Year 2018 / 2019 

 
 
EXPENDITURES: 
 
Administrative (Continued): 
 
Management Fees 
 
This service includes $57,313 in management and financial advisory services 
provided to the District under the Management Contract with Inframark.   
 
Telephone 
 
Telephone and fax machine expenses are budgeted for this Fiscal Year for $3,334. 
 
Postage 
 
Mailing of agenda packages, overnight deliveries, correspondence, etc.  The 
projected expense for this Fiscal Year is $668. 
 
Printing and Binding 
Checks, stationary, envelopes, photocopies, etc.  The projected expense for this 
Fiscal Year is $1,260. 
 
Administrative Building Costs 
 
This expense represents the costs to operate and maintain the administration 
building.  The projected amount for this cost is $12,000. 
 
Insurance 
 
The District retains Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors as our Insurance Agent, who on 
a yearly basis arranges the placement of the District insurance for property, general 
liability, and inland marine coverage. The expected amount for this Fiscal Year 
should not exceed $1,179. 
 
Legal Advertising 
 
The District does most of its legal advertising in the Sun-Sentinel.  Expenses include 
monthly meetings, special meetings, public hearings, etc.  Based on prior years’ 
experience the amount should not exceed $2,000. 
 
 
 

Page 7 

Agenda Page 48



 
 

 
 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
General Fund 

          Proposed Budget 
Fiscal Year 2018 / 2019 

 
EXPENDITURES: 
 
Administrative (Continued): 
 
Contingencies 
 
The District is budgeting $1,000 for various bank charges incurred on its accounts.  
 
Computer Expense/Technology  
 
All the District’s financial records, accounts payable are processed on a main frame 
computer owned by Coral Springs Improvement District Water and Sewer Fund.  
The budget amount for this technology is $29,400 and includes the cost of digital 
record keeping for engineering/project plans. 
 
Digital Record Management 
 
The District is providing for the set up and maintenance of digital records of existing 
infrastructure as-builts as well as providing for the mapping of drainage assets.  The 
amount being budgeted is $1,000. 
 
Office Supplies 
 
Accounting and Administrative Supplies.  Projected expense for this year is $7,125. 
 
Dues, Licenses, Subscriptions 
 
An annual renewal fee to Florida Assoc. of Special Districts in the amount of $2,625,  
an annual Special District fee to the Department of Community Affairs in the amount 
of $175, on-going accounting and seminars totaling $1,000, and $4,000 for other 
management related training. The projected expense totals $7,800. 
 
Promotional Expense 
 
The District circulates periodic newsletters for the purpose of keeping its residents 
informed of issues affecting them and may sponsor an open house event for 
educating District residents about the services being provided.  The annual budget 
for this item is $4,800.  
 
 
 
 

Page 8 
 

Agenda Page 49



 
 

 
 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
General Fund 

Proposed Budget 
Fiscal Year 2018 / 2019 

 
 
EXPENDITURES: 
 
Administrative (Continued): 
 
Capital Purchases 
 
There are no budgeted expenditures.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9 
 

Agenda Page 50



 
 

 
 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
General Fund 

Proposed Budget 
Fiscal Year 2018 / 2019 

 
Field Operations: 
 
Salaries and Wages 
 
The total amount of budgeted wages for this Fiscal Year is $278,553.   
 
Special Pay 
 
Special pay is a holiday bonus based on number of years of service.  Special pay is 
budgeted for $813. 
      
FICA Taxes 
 
FICA tax is established by the law and currently is 7.65%.  Based on salaries of 
$278,553 FICA taxes are being budgeted for $21,309. 
 
Pension Expense 
 
The pension plan was established whereby the employer contributes into the plan 
annually.  Based on salaries of $278,553 pension expense is budgeted for $33,426. 

 
Health Insurance  
 
The District offers the employees Health, Life, Dental and Disability Insurance.  The 
projected cost to be paid by the District for this fiscal year is $88,849. 
 
Worker’s Compensation Insurance 
 
The District’s Worker’s Compensation Insurance premium is budgeted for $15,433. 
 
Water Quality Testing 
 
Water Quality Testing is done to provide a guide for planning the aquatic plant 
control program and in addition provides indications of dangerous or threatening 
conditions.   Based on last year’s quarterly testing the amount is estimated to be 
$3,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10 

Agenda Page 51



 
 

 
 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
General Fund 

Proposed Budget 
Fiscal Year 2018 / 2019 

 
 
EXPENDITURES: 
 
Field Operations (Continued): 
 
 
Communications-Radios/Cellphones 
 
The District provides Nextel/Sprint telephones for the field employees.  The following 
are the estimated costs for the budget year. 
  

 
     Mo. Average    Yearly 
 Field Supervisor     $ 96                 $1,152 
 Truck No. 1         30                              360 
 Truck No. 2         30         360 
 
 Total                                  $1,872  
 

  
Electric 
 
The District currently has the following utility accounts with Florida Power and Light 
Co. for purposes of providing electricity to the District’s two pump stations:  
 
 
                                         Address      Avg. Monthly       Annual 
 
Pump Station # 1 - 121 N.W. 93rd Terrace  $ 61.08               $    733  
Pump Station # 2 - 12000 S.W. 1st Street     56.50                         678 
Total                                                    $  1,411 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11 
 

Agenda Page 52



 
 

 
 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
General Fund 

Proposed Budget 
Fiscal Year 2018 / 2019 

 
EXPENDITURES: 
 
Field Operations (Continued): 
 
Rentals and Leases 
 
There are no budgeted expenditures. 
 
Insurance 
 
The District retains Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors as our Insurance Agent, who on 
a yearly basis arranges the placement of the District insurance for property, general 
liability, and inland marine coverage.  Based on the prior years’ experience the 
expected amount for this Fiscal Year should not exceed $14,846. 
 
Repair & Maintenance - General 
 
The following is a listing of the different repairs and maintenance needed for 
operations. 
 

  Vehicle Maintenance    $     8,467 
  Pump Station Repairs/Maintenance         14,800 
  Trash Pick-up Service                     4,973 
  Canal Bank Mowing                      3,900 
  Misc. Repairs          21,870 
         Total                   $   54,010 
 
Repair & Maintenance - Culvert Inspection and Cleaning 
 
Culvert inspection and cleaning costs of $69,500 are being budgeted this year.  
 
Repair & Maintenance - Canal Dredging & Maintenance 
 
Estimated costs for canal maintenance are $25,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12 
 

Agenda Page 53



 
 

 
 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
General Fund 

Proposed Budget 
Fiscal Year 2018 / 2019 

 
EXPENDITURES: 
 
Field Operations (Continued): 
 
Repair & Maintenance – Vegetation Management 
 
Prevention of growth of invasive vegetation in canal rights-of-way, with associated 
bank repair.  This should not exceed $15,000. 
 
Operating Supplies - General 
 
The following is a listing of the different operating supplies needed for operations. 
 

  
 Safety equipment               $  3,300Grass Eating  
           Annual Waterway Cleanup Donation                   525 
      Total                          $  3,825 

 
Operating Supplies - Chemicals 
 
Estimated costs for chemicals for the budget year are $114,659.    
 
Operating Supplies - Uniform Rental / Purchase 
 
Estimated costs for uniform rental / purchase including Employee Safety Boot 
Allowance for the budget year are $1,823. 
 
Operating Supplies - Motor Fuels & Propane 
 
Estimated costs for motor fuels and propane for the budget year are $51,705. 
 
Dues, Licenses, Schools 
 
Employees are required to have an Aquatic License. This expense includes the 
classes, licenses and all fees related to the employee obtaining an Aquatic License.   
This year’s projected amount should not exceed $3,752. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13 

Agenda Page 54



 
 

 
 

Coral Springs Improvement District 
General Fund 

Proposed Budget 
Fiscal Year 2018 / 2019 

 
EXPENDITURES: 
 
Field Operations (Continued): 
 
 
Capital Outlay-Equipment 
 
Capital outlay for equipment is budgeted for $27,500. 
 
Capital Improvements 
 
Capital improvements in the amount of $1,000.000 are being budgeted for canal 
bank restoration assessment.   
  
Reserves for 1st Quarter Operating 
 
The amount of $350,000 is reserved toward 1st quarter operation expenses. 
 
Reserves for Assigned Projects and Emergencies 
 
The reserve fund is established to set aside funds for projects designed to maintain 
the District’s drainage assets and to provide for unexpected events/natural disasters 
that may occur other than those related to Hurricanes.  This fiscal year the amount 
projected to be set aside is $250,000. 
 
Storms Damages Reserves  
 
The district has established that 3 million dollars will be collected over the next three 
years to limit exposure of financial losses due to storms.  The 1 million dollars 
represents 1/3 of our target goal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14 

Agenda Page 55



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sixth Order of Business 

Agenda Page 56



May 4, 2018 

Members of the Board of Supervisors 
Coral Springs Improvement District 
10300 N.W. 11th Manor 
Coral Springs, Florida 33071 

Dear Members of the Board: 

Keefe 
McCullough 
CPA's + Trusted Advisors 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding ofthe services we are to provide Coral Springs Improvement 
District (the "District") for the year ended September 30, 2018. We will audit the financial statements of 
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, including the related notes to 
the financia l statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the District as of 
and for the year ended September 30, 2018. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI}, such as management's 
discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the District's basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our 
engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the District's RSI in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will consist of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by 
U.S generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but wi ll 
not be audited: 

1. Management's Discussion and Analysis. 

2. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Schedules. 

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies the 
District's financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and 
will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole in a report combined with 
our auditor's report on the financial statements: 

1. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

2. Schedule of Operating Expenses by Department - Proprietary Fund. 

KMCcpa.com I 6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 Phone: 954.771.0896 Fax: 954.938.9353 

Agenda Page 57



Coral Springs Improvement District -2- May 4, 2018 

Audit Objectives 

The objective of our audit is the expression of an opin ion as to whether your financial statements are fairly 
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to 
report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when 
considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The objective also includes reporting on: 

• Internal control over financia l reporting and compliance with provision of laws, regu lations, 
contracts, and award agreements, noncompliance with which cou ld have a material effect on 
the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

• Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of 
opinion) on compliance with federal statutes, regu lations, and the terms and conditions of 
federal awards that could have a direct and material effect on each major program in 
accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Admirative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance 
and other matters will include a paragraph that states that (1) that the purpose of the report is so lely to 
describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control on compliance, and (2) the report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the entity's internal control and compliance. The Uniform Guidance report on internal control over 
compliance is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control over compliance and the results of 
that testing based on the requ irements of the Uniform Guidance. Both report will state that the report is 
not su itable for any other purpose. 

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General ofthe United States; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; the provisions ofthe 
Uniform Guidance, and will include tests of the accounting records, a determination of major program(s) 
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to 
express such an opinion. We w ill issue a written report upon completion of our single audit. Our report will 
be addressed to the Board Supervisors of the District. We cannot provide assurance that unmodified 
opinions will be expressed . Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions 
or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will 
discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are 
unable to form or have not formed an opin ion, we may decline to express an opinion or issue reports, or 
may withdraw from th is engagement. 

Audit Procedures - General 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number oftransactions to be 
examined and the areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonab leness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudu lent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of 
assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government or to 
acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of 
abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable 
assurance of detecting abuse. 

KMCcpa.com I 6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 Phone: 954.771.0896 Fax: 954.938.9353 

Agenda Page 58



Coral Springs Improvement District -3- May 4, 2018 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, 
and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material 
misstatements or noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us, even though the aud it is properly 
planned and performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations 
of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial 
statements or on major programs. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any 
material errors, any fraudulent f inancial reporting, o r misappropriation of assets that come to our 
attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or 
governmental regulations that come to our attent ion, unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material 
abuse that comes to our attention. We will include such matters in the reports required fo r a Single Audit. 
Our responsibil ity as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to later 
periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 

Our procedures w ill include tests of documentary evidence support ing the transactions recorded in the 
accounts, and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of 
receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding 
sources, creditors and financial institutions. We wil l request writ ten representations from your attorneys 
as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our 
audit, we w ill require certain written representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial 
statements; schedule of expenditures of federal awards; federal award programs; compliance with laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by generally accepted 
auditing standards. 

Audit Procedures - Internal Control 

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including 
internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the fi nancia l statements and to 
design the nature, t iming, and extent offurther audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to 
test the effect iveness of certa in controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and 
fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements 
resu lting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an 
opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control 
issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

As required by t he Uniform Guidance, we wil l perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the 
effect iveness ofthe design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting 
material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program. 
However, our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opin ion on those controls 
and, accordingly, no opin ion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pu rsuant to the 
Uniform Guidance. 

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or 
materia l weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion . However, during the audit, we wil l 
communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that 
are requi red to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance. 

KMCcpa.com I 6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 Phone: 954.771.0896 Fax: 954.938.9353 

Agenda Page 59



Coral Springs Improvement District -4- May 4, 2018 

Audit Procedures - Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will perform tests of the District's compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, and agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of those 
procedures will be not to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we wi ll not express such an 
opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

The Uniform Guidance requires t hat we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the auditee has complied with federal statutes, regu lations, and the terms and conditions 
of federal awards applicable to major programs. Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and 
other applicable procedures described in t he OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compl iance 
req uirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District's major programs. The 
purpose of these procedures will be to express an opinion on the District's compliance with requirements 
applicable to each of its major programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant to the Un iform 
Guidance. 

Other Services 

We will also assist in preparing the financia l statements, schedule of expendit ures of federa l awards, and 
related notes of the Dist rict in conformity wit h U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and t he 
Uniform Guidance based on information provided by you. These nonaudit services do not constitute an 
audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards . We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional 
standards. The other services are limited to the financial statement services previously defined. We, in our 
sole professional judgement, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that 
could be construed as assuming management responsibi lities. 

Management Responsibilities 

Management is responsible for (1) designing, implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective 
internal controls relevant to the preparation and fa ir presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, including internal controls over federal 
awards, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goa ls and 
objectives are met; (2) following laws and regu lations; (3) ensuring t hat there is reasonable assurance that 
government programs are admin istered in compliance with compliance requirements; and (4) ensuring 
that management and financia l information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also 
responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting 
principles, for the preparation and fa ir presentation of the financial statements, schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards, and all accompanying information in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
account ing principles, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations (including federal statutes) 
and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements (including award agreements). Your responsibility 
also includes identifying signif icant cont ractor relationships in which the cont ractor has responsibility for 
program compliance and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. 

Management is also responsible for making all fi nancial records and related information available to us 
and for the accuracy and completeness of that informat ion . You are also responsible for providing us with 
(1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements, (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting 
documentation, and other information as needed to perform an audit under the Uniform Guidance, (3) 
addit ional information t hat we may request for the pu rpose of the audit, and (4) unrestricted access to 
persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

KMCcpa.com I 6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 Phone: 954.771.0896 Fax: 954.938.9353 

Agenda Page 60



Coral Springs Improvement District -5- May 4, 2018 

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for 
confirming to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements 
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are 
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect 
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affect ing the government involving (1) 
management, (2) employees who have significant ro les in internal control, and (3) others where t he fraud 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your 
knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspect ed fraud affecting the government received in 
communicat ions from employees, fo rmer employees, granters, regulators, or others. In addition, you are 
responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government compl ies with applicable laws, regulations, 
contracts, agreements, and grants. Management is also responsible for taking timely and appropriate 
steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance wit h provisions of laws, regulations, contracts or grant 
agreements, or abuse that we report. Additionally, as requ ired by the Uniform Guidance, it is 
management's responsibil ity to evaluate and monitor noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, 
and the term and conditions of federal awards; take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are 
ident ified including noncompliance ident ified in audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective 
action on reported audit findings; and to prepare a summary schedule of prior audit f indings and a 
separate corrective action plan. 

You are responsible for identifying all federal awards received and understanding and complying with the 
compl iance requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
(including notes and noncash assistance received) in conformity with the Uniform Guidance. You agree to 
include our report on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in any document that contains and 
indicates t hat we have reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. You also agree to 
include the audited financial statements with any presentation ofthe schedule of expenditures offederal 
awards that included our report thereon . Your responsibi lities include acknowledging to us in the written 
representation letter that (1) you are responsib le for presentation of the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards in accordance with the Un iform Guidance; (2) you believe the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards, including its form and content, is stated fa irly in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; 
(3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period 
(or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant 
assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the schedule of 
expendit ures of federa l awards. 

You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have been 
engaged to report on, in conformity with the U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to 
include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains, and indicated that 
we have reported, on the supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial 
statements with any presentation of the supplementary information t hat includes our report t hereon. 
Your responsibilities include acknowledge to us in the written representation letter that {1) you are 
responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe 
the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with 
GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in prior period 
(or, if they have changed, the reason for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us in any significant 
assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary 
information. 

KMCcpa.com I 6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 Phone: 954.771.0896 Fax: 954.938.9353 

Agenda Page 61



Coral Springs Improvement District -6- May 4, 2018 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit 
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report 
copfes of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related 
to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. Th is responsibility includes 
re laying to us corrective actions taken to address significant find ings and recommendations resu lting from 
those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are also responsible for 
providing management's views on our current f indings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as 
your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing t hat 
information. 

You agree to assume all management responsibi lities relating to t he financial statements, schedule of 
expenditures of federa l awards, and related notes, and any other non audit services we provide. You will 
be required to acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of 
the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes and that you have 
reviewed and approved the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related 
notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the 
nonaud it services by designating an individual, preferably from sen ior management, with suitable skil l, 
knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results oft hose services; and accept responsibility 
for t hem. 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 

We understand that your employees will prepare al l cash, or other confirmations we request and will 
locate any invoices selected by us for testing. 

At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection 
Form that summarizes our audit findings . It is management's responsibil ity to electronically submit the 
reporting package (including financial statements, schedule of expenditure of federal awards, summary 
schedule of prior audit find ings, auditor's reports, and corrective action plan} along with the Data 
Collection Form to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. We will coordinate with you the electronic submission 
and certification. The Data Collection Form and the reporting package must be submitted within the 
earlier of 30 calendar days afte r receipt of the auditor's reports or nine months after the end of the audit 
period . 

We will provide copies of our reports to the District; however, management is responsible for distribution 
oft he reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged 
and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Keefe McCullough and constitutes 
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and 
appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to regu lators or its 
designee, a federa l agency providing direct or indirect fund ing, or the U.S. Government Accountability 
Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out overs ight 
responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request . If requested, access to such audit documentation 
will be provided under the supervision of Keefe McCullough personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we 
may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may 
intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other 
governmental agencies. 

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a m inimum of five years after the report 
release date or for any additional period requested by the agencies listed above. If we are aware that a 
federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the 
party(ies} contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 

KMCcpa.com I 6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 Phone: 954.771.0896 Fax: 954.938.9353 

Agenda Page 62



Coral Springs Improvement Dist rict -6- May 4, 2018 

Our fee for services rendered wi ll be based upon the difficulty of your engagement and the time and skill 
level of our personnel assigned. Work is assigned, according t o its complexity, to the appropriate member 
of our staff. Our fee for th is engagement wil l not exceed $ 20,000 and$ 2,500 fo r each Single Aud it . This 
agreement may be renewed each year based on the mutual agreement to all terms, including fees, of both 
parties. An invoice for the services provided wil l be presented at the completion of the engagement or at 
the end of each semi-monthly billing period, whichever occurs fi rst . Payment of our invoice is due w hen 
rendered. The above fee is based on the anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the 
assumption t hat unexpected circumstances wil l not be encountered during t he audit. If significant 
additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur 
t he additional costs. 

We appreciate the opportunit y to be of service to t he District and believe this letter accurat ely 
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you 
agree w ith the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign t he enclosed copy and 
return it to us. 

Regards, 

KEEFE McCULLOUGH 

Marc Grace, C.P.A. 

Acknowledgment: 

Coral Springs Improvement District 

Signature Tit le Date 

KMCcpa.com I 6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 Phone: 954.771.0896 Fax: 954.938.9353 

Agenda Page 63



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Seventh Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 64



Placeholder for Award of Contract D 2018-02 for Two Sprayers for 

Drainage Department 

Agenda Page 65



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Eighth Order of Business 

  

Agenda Page 66



 
 
 

 
 

 

THE EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TERMS & PRICING 
UNDER THE 

COLLIER COUNTY CONTRACT 
 

RFP Solicitation #13-6148,  
Analytical Laboratory Services 

 

TO THE CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. 
1460 W. McNab Road 

Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309 
PH:  954.978.6400 

FAX:  954.978.2233 
www.flenviro.com 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 67

http://www.flenviro.com/


 

 

 

 

 

 

www.flenviro.com 
1460 West McNab Road Ft Lauderdale, Fl 33309 

Phone 954.978.6400  Fax 954.978.2233 

 

2 

May 2, 2018 
 
Coral Spring Improvement District 
David McIntosh 
10300 N.W. 11th Manor 
Coral Springs, FL 33071 

RE: THE EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TERMS & PRICING UNDER THE COLLIER COUNTY 
CONTRACT; RFP 13-6148 TO THE CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  

 
Dear Mr. David McIntosh and Members of the Selection Committee: 
 
On behalf of Florida – Spectrum Environmental Services Inc., I am pleased to offer the extension of the 
contract terms and pricing under the Collier County Contract RFP 13-6148 to the Coral Springs 
Improvement District for an additional two (2) years after the expiration of the original contract, 

expiration date of May 12, 2018.   Florida-Spectrum is confident that we will continue to exceed all the 
specified requirements to provide analytical support services to the Coral Springs Improvement District, 
as well as ensure adequate cost comparison and value. 
     
Florida – Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. is committed to providing all the specified 
requirements in accordance with the requested turnaround time and all required contract specifications.  
I am confident that upon review of our qualifications, you will deem Florida – Spectrum Environmental 

Services, Inc. an asset to this contract. 
 
Thank you for your time and consideration.  I look forward to the opportunity to work with you.  
 
Sincerely, 
 

Katharine A. Kutil 
 
Katharine A. Kutil 
Director of Sales & Marketing 
Florida – Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 68



 

 

 

 

 

 

www.flenviro.com 
1460 West McNab Road Ft Lauderdale, Fl 33309 

Phone 954.978.6400  Fax 954.978.2233 

 

3 

 

Services 
 

Laboratory analysis of water samples collected from Coral Springs Improvement District Water 
Treatment Plant and the Coral Springs Improvement District Wastewater Treatment Plant for compliance 
or monitoring purposes on a daily, monthly and annual basis, as well as, quarterly monitoring well 
sampling and analyses. 

 
A. Florida-Spectrum will analyze samples of drinking water, waste water, source water (surface or 
ground water) or any other samples as needed from CSID’s Water Treatment Plant (WTP) as well as from 
the CSIDs Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP). 
 
B. Based on CSID’s needs, Florida-Spectrum will collect samples from specified sites.  Florida-Spectrum 
will be responsible for all sampling equipment, shipping containers and any other sampling needs based 
on project and/or method and/or regulatory agency requirements. 
 
C. Florida-Spectrum will supply Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) approved sample shipping 
containers adequate for sample integrity and preservation, at no additional cost to the CSID.  CSID 
personnel will collect and pack the samples in the sample containers. Florida-Spectrum will pick up the 
samples for analysis at the specified location preferably on the same day but no later than the following 
business day or per the schedule event of sampling.  Standard weekly and during normal business hours, 
pickup fees are included in the unit cost.  Any samples required to be sampled and/or picked up outside 
our normal business hours will be described in the table below “Pricing Structure for After Hours and 
Emergencies Only”. 
 
D. Florida-Spectrum shall analyze samples according to project, permit, regulatory agency or CSID’s 
specified requirements using EPA approved methods for the specific matrix. Florida-Spectrum shall 
ensure analysis of samples within prescribed EPA, DOH, FDEP or method holding time limits. 
 
E. Florida-Spectrum will supply a detailed report meeting NELAP requirements for each parameter result 
with units in electronic format including (if applicable); quality control results, data qualifiers with 
descriptions, method detection limits, practical quantitation limits, method description, dilutions, sample 
preparer, preparation date, preparation time, sample analyst, analysis date, analysis time, collector, 
collection date, collection time, sample location, reporter, reporting date, and unique identification for 
each sample along with the sample chain-of-custody to CSID’s personnel within five to seven (5 to 7) 
business days from the date of sample receipt. If a test requires more time for analysis the Florida-
Spectrum will inform the CSID personnel at the time of sample receipt. 
 
F. Florida-Spectrum will notify the CSID personnel within 24 hours when a sample result indicates 
violation of the Safe Water Drinking Act, the Clean Water Act, FDEP Drinking water rules or other 
applicable permits and or consent decrees. Examples include but are not limited to:  MCL violation of 
Total Coliform rule or RDL (Regulatory Detection Limit) or MCL (Maximum Contaminant Limit) 
exceedance for drinking water samples.   

Agenda Page 69



 

 

 

 

 

 

www.flenviro.com 
1460 West McNab Road Ft Lauderdale, Fl 33309 

Phone 954.978.6400  Fax 954.978.2233 

 

4 

 
Coral Springs Improvement District 

                                     
PRICING STRUCTURE FOR AFTER HOURS, EMERGENCIES ONLY 

 
 “Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. will arrange for sample retrieval at Department specified facilities 
during the event of a Department determined emergency or crisis, service shall be provided within the hours of the 
Department’s request. This emergency provision includes After Hours, Weekends and Holidays.  Should this 
emergency occur, due to the cost of operation, overtime, materials and employees that will be provided during these 
emergencies, Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. will charge the following outlined below.” 
 

After Hours (Monday through Friday) 

Analytical Sampling Fees Pickup Fees Laboratory Fees 

Same as Contract Price $112.50 per/hr $150.00 $150.00 

Weekends (Saturday and Sunday) 

Analytical Sampling Fees Pickup Fees  
(Saturday & 
Sunday) 

Laboratory Fees 

Same as Contract Price $112.50 per/hr $150.00 $150.00 (Saturday All 
other Departments)                                                                                             
$75.00 (Saturday Micro 
Only) 

   $300.00 (Sunday) 

Any samples dropped off, picked up or sampled on a Friday or day before a Holiday that have a 
short hold that require immediate prep to be analyzed will be subject to a weekend Charge.             
** Special Staffing is required. 

Weekend Lab Fee (Analysis for Micro Samples and Other Short Hold Analyses)                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
( Sunday) (Special Staffing required for Sundays)  
 

Holidays 

Analytical Sampling Fees Pickup Fees Laboratory Fees 

Same as Contract Price $150.00 per/hr $150.00 $400.00 

 
*PLEASE NOTE:  Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc. has submitted this separate pricing, 
because we wanted to be fair and not charge the Department emergency/crisis fees during normal 
hours of operation. 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 70



Agenda Page 71



Agenda Page 72



Agenda Page 73



Fax:    (954) 978-2233

www. flenviro.com

1460 West McNab Road

Fort Lauderdale, Fl 33309

Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc.

Florida-Spectrum Environmental
Laboratory

Pricing Schedule

Collier County Government

Phone: (954) 978-6400

Solicitation #13-6148; Analytical Laboratory Services

Includes:

Pricing & Test Method Reference

Holding Time & Preservative Reference Chart

Big Lake Laboratories

610 North Parrot Ave.

Okeechobee, Fl 34972

 Pembroke Laboratories

528th Gooch Road

Fort Meade, Fl 33841

Spectrum Laboratories

630 Indian Street 

Savannah, Ga 31401

Agenda Page 74



Please call 1-2 days in advance to schedule your sample pick-up 

and get added to the route.

Other Regions $55 per hour portal to portal

Note: Free Sample Pick-up

Projects over $1000 (or shipping depending on region)

Broward County $55 service fee

Dade County $55 service fee

Palm Beach County $55 service fee

Phone (954) 978-6400

Fax (954) 978-2233

Sample Pick-Up Fees

Pick-Up Region Sample Pick-Up Charge

Hours of Operation

Client Service Managers are available 8:00am-5:00pm Monday-Friday

Location

Sample Custody Department is open 8:00am-6:00pm Monday-Friday and 8:00am-3:00pm Saturdays

1460 West McNab Road

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33309

Page 1

Agenda Page 75



Research (method development, literature search, forensic) $175.00 per Hr

Expert Witness Testimony $225.00 per Hr

Technical Support Price

Technician (software support, test selection, archive retrieval, etc.) $80.00 per Hr

Methodologies, QC Physical File Numbers… 15% Surcharge

Quality Assurance Data Request after report 20% Surcharge

QA/QC Summary Report including…

Blank, LCS Recovery, MSPK-DUP, % Recovery & RPD-Precision,

Surrogates, Completeness, Acceptance Criteria as per published EPA 

Electronic Deliverables Quoted

ADaPT Deliverables 20% Surcharge

Call your personal Client Service Manager ahead of time to reserve 

your expedited work with a RUSH RESERVATION NUMBER

Special Reports Price

Customer Report Format Quoted

2 Days (48 Hours) (75% Surcharge) 1.75

3 Days (72 Hours) (50% Surcharge) 1.50

5 - 7 Days Standard TAT 1.00

4 Days (96 Hours) (25% Surcharge) 1.25

EXPEDITED SERVICES & SPECIAL DELIVERABLES

Expedited Analytical Service Factor x Price

Same Day, <10 Hrs (200% Surcharge) 3.00

1 Day (24 Hours) (100% Surcharge) 2.00

Organic Vapor Analyzer Rental per 24 hr day $375.00

Bailers $15.00

Compositer Rental per 24 hr day $275.00

Price includes all labor for setup and next day sample pickup

Mileage (When applicable by special quote) $0.55

SAMPLING RATES

Sampling Rates Rates

Sampling Labor Rate (per hour) $75.00

Page 2

Agenda Page 76



Need to check on Sample Results, request a RUSH Reservation Number, ask for technical 

Call your Client Service Manager.

Florida Environmental's Turnaround Time for standard in-house analysis and reporting is five to 

seven (5-7) business days.

Bobby Supan

(954) 978-6400 Ext. 304

s.supan@flenviro.com

Okeechobee, Hendry, Glades Cell# (561) 715-4426

kkutil@flenviro.com

TURNAROUND TIME 

Katharine Kutil

Bobby Supan

(954) 978-6400 Ext. 304

Maria Castellanos

(954) 978-6400 Ext. 303

m.castellanos@flenviro.com

Miami-Dade, Monroe, Lee, Katharine A. Kutil

Charlotte, Manatee, Pinellas Cell# (561) 715-4426

Counties kkutil@flenviro.com

Latin America

Caribbean Islands

Region Sales Contact

your account. This team works in tandem to coordinate and handle your service needs.

Need to discuss special pricing for an upcoming sampling event? 

Call your Sales contact.

Client Service Mgr

SALES & CLIENT SERVICES CONTACT INFORMATION

As part of our reorganization, we focused on improving our Client Services & Sales Structure

As a client you now have a personalized "Sales & Services Manager" team assigned to handle 

assistance, order a Sample Kit?

With few exceptions, these Teams have been structured based on a Geographical distribution.

The Sales/Client Services Manager Teams are as follows…

Broward County

kkutil@flenviro.com

kkutil@flenviro.com

Highland Counties

Katharine A. Kutil

Cell# (561) 715-4426

Hillsborough, Polk and

Otherwise payments terms are C.O.D.

Note: Work subcontracted to outside labs have a turnaround of 2-3 weeks.

Payment Terms
Terms are based on negotiated contractual conditions, or approved credit.

s.suppan@flenviro.com

Enrique Ochoa

St. Lucie and Indian River

Palm Beach, Martin, 

Counties

Cell# (561) 715-4426

Katharine Kutil

(954) 978-6400 Ext. 325

e.ochoa@flenviro.com

Page 3

Agenda Page 77



COST COST

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $34.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$50.00 $65.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$23.00 $26.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$50.00 $65.00

$50.00 $65.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$13.00 $19.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$40.00 $60.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 NC

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

$27.00 $75.00

$10.00 $15.00

$10.00 $15.00

6010

Chromium (Cr)

Cobalt (Co)

Copper (Cu)

Gold (Au)

Iron (Fe)

Lead (Pb)

Magnesium (Mg)

Manganese (Mn)

Mercury (Hg)

Metals

METAL WATER MATRIX

SOIL, SOLIDS, OILS,

& WASTES

Beryllium (Be)

Bismuth (Bi)

Cadmium (Cd)

Calcium  (Ca)

Boron (B)

Aluminum (Al)

Antimony (Sb)

Arsenic (As)

Barium (Ba)

Molybdenum (Mo)

Nickel ( Ni)

Potassium (K)

Selenium (Se)

Palladium (Pd)

Platinum (Pt)

Silicon (Si)

Silver (Ag)

Sodium (Na)

Uranium (U)

Strontium (Sr)

Thallium (Tl)

Tin (Sn)

Titanium (Ti)

Sulfur (Total)

200.7/ 200.8

FSE-ICP/ICP-AES

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

245.1

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

200.7

200.7/ 200.8

200.7

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

7471

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

200.8 6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

6010

200.7/ 200.8

200.7/ 200.8Zinc (Zn)

Vanadium (V)

Lithium (Li) 200.7 6010

Please Note:  Items highlighted in "Yellow" we are not certified for or certification is not regulated and still can be performed by 

FSES.  In the event it is regulated, FSES can subcontract the work to a certified laboratory.

Thorium (Th) 200.8 -

Ask your Sales representative and or Client Service Manager for assistance with Special Request metals not listed above.

All prices include digestion/ extraction except for seawater ($65 surcharge) & TCLP ($50 Extraction).

*Appropriate test methods will be selected to satisfy NELAC and meet your regulatory requirements.

Page 4

Agenda Page 78



Water 

Matrix Cost Cost

305.1 $22.00 -

Combined $45.00 $60.00

310.1 $10.00 -

15-550.310TEM $275.00 $100.00

405.1 $24.00 -

300 $10.00 $36.00

300.1 $50.00 -

ASTM $157.00 $225.00

SM5310C $16.00 $68.00

SM5210B $24.00 -

310.1 $20.00 -

410.4 $12.00 $42.00

300 & SM4500 $10.00 $36.00

$75.00

330.4 $21.00 -

SM 2350B $215.00 -

SM10200 $35.00

SM 3500-Cr B 

(20th/21st Ed.)/UV-

VIS $25.00 $73.00

SM9222D $20.00 -

SM9222B $20.00 -

SM2120B $12.00 $28.00

120.1 $6.00 -

- $18.00 $18.00

SM 4500CN-E  $27.00 $84.00

EPA 1010 $20.00 $20.00

300 $10.00 $18.00

900.1 $105.00 -

900.1 $165.00 -

900 $105.00 -

325.3 (MOD) $80.00 $32.00

325.3 (MOD) $80.00 $32.00

200.7 $10.00 -

200.7 $10.00 -

1664A $38.00 $40.00

376.2 $40.00 $52.00

- $180.00

- $10.00 -

SM2330B $68.00 -

425.1/ SM5540C $26.00 -

300 & SM4500 $10.00 $16.00

300 & SM4500 $10.00 $16.00

350.1 $12.00 $15.00

351.2 $14.00 $14.00

351.2 $22.00 -

300 +351 Combined $26.00 $26.00

SM2150B $10.00 -

1664A $38.00 $40.00

360.1 $21.00 -

- - $52.00

S160.3 $10.00 $10.00

- - $12.00

- - $180.00

150.1 $6.00 $8.00

420.2/420.4 $20.00 $26.00

-

9056

Nitrite (NO2)

-

350.1

351.2

9056

TKN minus AMMONIA

9071

-

5050/9056

-

-

9095

S160.3

TKN + Total nitrate-nitrite 

D6304

FSE-OG-TRPH/GRAV

9030

-

EPA 1010

9056

-

-

-

 FSE-TOX/TITR

-

9056

-

-

N/A

9012

-

-

Combined

-

Bulk

-

-

Oil & Grease, HEM

Odor

Percent Solids

9056

ASTM

Nitrate (NO3)

9060 (Sub)

Hardness, Total (calc.)

Hardness, Calcium

Gross Alpha (High Solids){sub}

Langalier Index

MBAS (SURFACTANTS)

Karl Fisher Water

Paint Filter Liquids Test

Percent Liquids

Oxygen Dissolved

Nitrogen (Ammonia)(NH3)

Nitrogen (Kjedahl)(TKN)

Nitrogen (Total) 

Nitrogen(Total Organic)

Halogens, Organic (TOX)

Cyanide, Total

Flashpoint (PMCC) (Ignitablitiy)

Fluoride

Gross Alpha {sub}

Hydrogen Sulfide

Gross Beta {sub}

Halogens, Total

Hydrocarbons, SGT-HEM (TRPH)

CBOD

Chemical Oxygen Demand

Chloride

Chlorine, Residual

Carbon Dioxide (CO2)

Chloride in concrete

Acidity

Acids, % and Type

Alkalinity (CaCO3)

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD-5)

Asbestos (Sub)

Bromate, Chlorate, Chlorite

Karl FischerPercent Water

INORGANIC CONSTITUENTS AND PROPERTIES

Inorganic Constituent

Soils, Solids, Oils, 

Waste Matrix

Bromide

BTU (Parr Bomb.) (Sub)

Carbon, Total Organic (TOC)

SM2540G

Phenols

9040

9066

pH

Coliform Fecal

Corrosivity (RCRA)

7196 (Sub)

-

-

N/A

9050

9040

Chlorine Demand -

Lab Filtration -

Coliform,Total

Color

Conductivity

Chlorophyll A

Chromium Hexavalent (Savannah Lab)

Page 5

Agenda Page 79



Water 

Matrix Cost Cost

300/365.1/365.2 $10.00 -

365.4 $15.00 -

365.1 $20.00

903 $160.00 -

904 $160.00 -

40 CFR 261.23 $140.00 $157.00

160.1/ SM2540C $10.00 -

160.2/ SM2540D $10.00 -

160.3 $10.00 $21.00

SM2540E/G $18.00 -

SM210B $21.00 -

370.1 $12.00 -

SM213E $9.00 $10.00

300 & SM4500 $10.00 $25.00

376.1/376.2/                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

SM4500-S F $18.00 $130.00

170.1 $7.00 -

180.1 $9.00 -

SM5910B $60.00 -

ASTM D88 $73.50 $78.00

Temperature -

Sulfate (SO4) 9056

Sulfide 9030

Turbidity -

Please Note:  Items highlighted in "Yellow" we are not certified for or certification is not regulated and still can be 

performed by FSES.  In the event it is regulated, FSES can subcontract the work to a certified laboratory.

All prices include digestion/extraction except for seawaters ($65 Surcharge) & TCLP ($50 Extraction + individual 

metals in soil matrix price). Ask your Sales representative and or Client Service Manager for assistance with special 

request Methods not listed.

Viscosity (Single Temperature) ASTM D88

*Appropriate test methods will be selected to satisfy NELAC and meet your regulatory requirements.

Residue, Total SM2540G

Specific Gravity (Density) SM213E

Residue, Volatile -

Salinity -

Silica -

Reactivity (SW846) 40 CFR 261.23

Residue, Total Filterable (TDS) -

Residue, Non-Filterable (TSS) -

365.4

Radium 226 {sub} -

Radium 228 {sub} -

Phosphorus, Total (low level) -

UV254 -

INORGANIC CONSTITUENTS AND PROPERTIES

Soils, Solids, Oils, 

Inorganic Constituent Waste Matrix

Phosphorus, O- 9056

Phosphorus, Total

Page 6

Agenda Page 80



Drinking Non-Potable

Water Cost Water Cost Cost

- - 8260 VOH $46.00 $48.00

- - 8260 VOA $40.00 $45.00

524.2 $45.00 - $45.00 -

- - 8260LS $100.00 $100.00

504.1 $42.00 8011 $42.00 $94.00

508 $90.00 608 $90.00 $95.00

508A $45.00 608 $45.00 $50.00

507 $178.00 619 $178.00

- 614 (8270) $95.00 $100.00

515.1 $110.00 615 $110.00 $120.00

531.1 $105.00 - - $315.00

547 $90.00 - - -

548 $110.00 - - -

549 $157.00 - - -

8316 $300.00 300.00$        

8260 $100.00 100.00$        

551.1 $95.00

552.2 $105.00 - - -

- - 604** (8270) $70.00 $80.00

- - 605** (8270) $70.00 $80.00

- - 606** (8270) $70.00 $80.00

- - 607** (8270) $70.00 $80.00

- - 609** (8270) $70.00 $80.00

- - 611** (8270) $70.00 $80.00

- - 8270LS $100.00 $100.00

Drinking Non-Potable 

Water Cost Water Cost

$220.00 $220.00

PRO & Volatile Organic Compound Data

8015H-Modified

Endothall

Diquat/Paraquat

8260LS

8011

-

-

-

- 612** (8270)

525

$220.00

Speciation of Hydrocarbons - $441.00 $472.00
C5-C40 Specification derived from PAH, 

Petroleum Fingerprint

Chlorinated 

Hydrocarbons (PAH)

Haloethers

Polynuclear Aromatic

Nitrosamines

Methodology

Hydrocarbons

Semi-Volatile Extractable 

Nitroaromatics & Isophorone

$65.00

8040** (8270)

- - 610** (8270) $70.00

$60.00

Organochlorine Pesticides

Chlorophenoxy Herbicides

Haloacetic Nitriles (HAN's)

Glyphosate

FL-PRO

Phthalate Esters

Haloacetic Acids (HAA's)

THMs Only

Library Search

- - FL-PRO

Purgeable Aromatics + MTBE

8090** (8270)

Acrylamide 8316

Epichlorohydrin 8260

Phenols

Benzidines

Florida-Petroleum

Residual Organics

Purgeable Organics + MTBE

by GC/MS

EDB, DBCP

- $70.00 8120** (8270)

Carbamate Pesticides

Nitrogen, Phosphorus & Triazine Pesticides

Organophosporus Pesticides

PCBs (Only)

Organic Analysis (GC-GC/MS)

Methodology

Soils, Solids, Oils,

& Waste Matrix

Purgeable Halocarbons

$90.00

8081

8151

8318

8141 (8270)

8082

8260 Full

-

$80.00

-

$195.00

$80.008310** (8270)

8050** (8270)

8060** (8270)

8070** (8270)

8110** (8270)

8270 Full

Special Research Developed Method

8260 VOH

8260 VOA

524.2 $85.00 624/8260 Full $85.00

$175.00 625/8270 Full $175.00

matrix price). Ask you Sales Rep. and/or Client Services Manager for assistance with special request Methods not listed above.

$315.00 $315.00

*Appropriate test methods will be selected to satisfy NELAC and meet your regulatory requirements.

**Florida Environmental normally uses EPA 625/8270 method to analyze for rare "600 & 8000 series" methods.

$315.00

All prices include digestion/extraction except for…Seawaters ($65 Surcharge) & TCLP ($50 Extraction + individual metal in soil

Caffeine in Surface & 

Groundwater (NEW)

SOP 2004-0-125

Library Search 8270LS

Compounds

& Waste Matrix Cost

Soils, Solids, Oils,

Page 7

Agenda Page 81



Water Soil
$93.00 $131.00

$143.00 $206.00

$350.00 $380.00

$245.00 _

 Color, Specific Gravity

Aromatics + Halocarbons

TCLP (Cd, Pb, As, Cr, Hg, Se, Ba, Ni, Ag)

Analysis Description of Analysis Cost of Analysis

TO-14 (MOD) $263.00

pH, %Solids, Flashpoint, FL-PRO, Odor, SM213E, PRO

Basic Fingerprint

%Solids, PRO, Halogens, BTU

Flashpoint, pH, %Solids, Specific Gravity

TCLP Purgeable Halocarbons & Aromatics PRO, 5050/9253, PARR

TCLP Purgeable Halocarbons & Aromatics 

TO-18
Aromatics only

$116.00

*In the case of Used Oils, profile will need to include PCB's at an additional charge of $50.00 per 

sample.

AIR MONITORING (TEDLARBAG)

Standard Incineration Profile*

Standard Landfill Profile

$487.00

Total (Cd, Pb, As, Cr,  Hg, Se, Ba, Ni, Ag) 6010, 7471, 8260, S1160.3

BASIC FLORIDA DISPOSAL PACKAGES

EPA/Standard Test 

Methods

Cost of 

Analysis

Disposal Package Name

$126.00

Distribution of Package

1010, 9045, S160.3, 

oil & Grease, Color, Odor SM213E, 9071, 140.1

40 CFR 258 Appendix II 

Organics
$555.00 $600.00

EPA 8081, 8141, 8151

EPA 8260 w/ extended list, EPA 8270 w/extended list, 

THM Formation Potential Includes THMs

$184.00

40 CFR 258 Appendix II 

Metals/ Inorganics
$250.00 $410.00

As, Be, Cd, Cr, Pb, Hg, Ni, Se, Zn, Ag, Sb, Cu, Tl, Ba,

40 CFR 258 Appendix I 

Volatiles

Co, Sn, V, CN-, S

Water Potability Profile

Dade Non-Community 

Drinking Water Profile
$805.00 _

V.A./F.H.A/H.U.D. pH, TDS, Hardness, Turbidity, Cu, Pb, Fe, As

NO3, FL-, Coliform, NO2, Cl, Br, ophosphate, sulfate

Odor, Ba, Fe, Mn, Na, Zn, CN-, Fl-, SO4, Phenols, MBAS,

$84.00 _

Sb, As, Be, Cd, Cr, Cu, Pb, Hg, Ni, Se, Ag, Tl, Zn

Chloride, Total Hardness, pH, Conductivity, Nitrate

Color, Ca, Fe, TDS

$165.00 _

Ni, k, Se, Na, Tl, V, Zn, CN-, Ag, Sn, S, % Solids

COMMONLY REQUESTED PROFILES
Designate profile name on chain of custody for best pricing and convenience.

Package Name Description of Package
Cost of Analysis

Priority Pollutant Metals

ECR II Profile

Sb, As, Ba, Be, Cd, Cr, Co, Cu, Pb, Ni, Se, Ag, Tl, V, Zn

RCRA 8 Metals Ag, As, Ba, Cd, Cr, Hg, Pb, Se

$150.00

EPA 8260 w/ Extended List, 8011
$127.00

Color, pH,  As, Cd, Cu, Pb, Hg, Se, Ag, Hex-Cr, TDS,

NO3, Turbidity, CL-, EPA 504, 508, 515, 524.2

Al, Sb, As, Ba, Be, Cd,Ca, Cr, Co, Cu, Fe, Mg, Mn, Hg,

140.1, 9045, S160.3, 1010

1311/(6010/7471/8260).

$618.00

TAL List-Inorganics/Metals
$320.00

TCL List Organics

40 CFR 258 Appendix I Metals 
$225.00

$310.00

EPA 8260, 8270, 8081/8082

Page 8

Agenda Page 82



Cost

$215.00

$505.00

$460.00

TCLP RCRA 4 Metals

$510.00

$381.00

DERM

Clean Backfill Criteria

*In the case of Used Oils, profile will need to include PCBs at an additional charge of $50.00 per sample.

Pre-burn Parameters

1311/6010/7471, 8260LL, 

8270, PRO, 9071

$331.00
6010, 7471, 8260, FL-PRO, 

8082

$499.00

$235.00

CFR 266.40 Waste Oil, 

Energy Recovery Profile

Pb, Hg, Mo, Ni, K, Se, Zn, pH

160.3, 6010, 7471, 9045

expressed as dry weight

%Solids, Nitrogen, Phosphorus, As, Cd, Cr, Cu

$156.00

$521.00

$260.00

$521.00

Petroleum 376.301 Group

%Solids

Petroleum Contaminated 

TABLE D

POST Treatment

62-713

Non-Petroleum Contaminated

Petroleum Contaminated 

Non-Petroleum Contaminated

$183.00

$540.00

$706.00

62-770:*

$268.00

$200.00
S: 8260 VOA, 

8270 PAH, FL-PRO. Tsolids

8260 VOH, FL-PRO, 6010B,

62-770:*

Gas & Kerosene Group

5050/9056

8260, 8270, 8081, 6010B

62-713

TOX (added when oil is of concern) + $32.00

Volatile Organics, Semi-Volatile Organics, 

Pesticides, As, Ba, Cd, Cr, Pb, Se, Ag, Hg

%Solids

UST, REMEDIATION, DISPOSAL, & SLUDGE PACKAGES
Designate profile name on chain of custody for best pricing and convenience

Package Name Description of Package Test Methods

POST Treatment

TABLE B

TABLE C

Used Oil Group

Volatile Halocarbons, As, Cd, Cr, Pb, 

FLPRO, %Solids, 

PRE Treatment

62-713

PRE Treatment

62-713

$288.00

$308.00
%Solids

W: 8260, 8270, 8011, 200

series, FL-PRO, 300, 160.1

S: 8260, 8270, 7000 or 

6010 series, FL-PRO

FL-PRO, CL- SO4, TDS

SOIL: VOA, VOH, PAH, FL-PRO, As, Cd, Cr, Pb

Statue 503

Sludge Analysis

RINKER (CEMEX)

62-770.*

% Solids

Volatile Organics, Semi-Volatile Organics, 

Pesticides, As, Ba, Cd, Cr, Pb, Se, Ag, Hg

WATER: VOA, VOH, PAH, EDB, As,Cd, Cr, Pb, 

CFR 122, App. D

Priority Pollutants

(with Florida extras)

Volatile Aromatic, FL-PRO, As, Cd

Cr, Pb, Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons,

As, Cd, Cr, Pb, Priority Pollutant Volatiles, Priority 

Pollutant Semi-Volatiles, PCB's, FL-PRO, Non-Priority 

Pollutant Organics > 10.00 (waters only), %Solids 

(soils only)
FL-PRO, 

%solids

WATER: Pb, FL-PRO, EDB, Volatile Aromatics

and Halocarbons, MTBE, PAH

SOIL: FL-PRO, Volatile Aromatics, PAHs, 

S: 6010, 8260, 8270, 8082, 

Semi-Volatile Organics, Pesticides & PCBs,

% Solids

pH, % Solids

Sb, As, Be, Cd, Cr, Cu, Pb, Hg, Ni, Se, Ag, Tl, 

Zn, Cyanide, Phenols, Volatile Organics, 

As, Cd, Cr, Pb, Hg, Flashpoint, Halogens, 

S: 6010, 9012, 9065, 8260, 

8260, 8270, 8081

6010B, 7471

W: Lead, FL-PRO, 504.1

8260 VOA/VOH, 8270 PAH

(if needed per table C)

W: 200.7, 8260, 8270, 8082,

FL-PRO, Library search.

8270, 8081/8082

6010,7471, 1010, 

5050/9056, 9045

VOA, VOH, PAH's, PRO, Oil & Grease, % Solids

TCLP (As, Ba, Cd, Cr, Pb, Hg, Se, Ag, Ni, Cu,)

As, Cd, Cr, Pb, Hg, Se, Ag, Ba, VOA, VOH

FL-PRO, Total Organic Halogens, %Solids

For "Non-Virgin" add PCB

5050/9056

8260, 8270, 8081, 

7471

W: 200 Series, 335.3, 420.2

8260 VOA, FL-PRO, 

8270 PAH, 6010B

Page 9

Agenda Page 83



Herbicides(8151) $120.00 Pesticides (8081) $95.00

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

5.0

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-82700.5

400.0

1311/1312-8151/8270

2.0

10.0

1.0 1311/1312-8151/8270

100.0

88-06-02

94-75-7

3.0

0.4

10.0

2.0

67-72-1

58-89-9

72-43-5

98-95-3

2,4,6,-trichlorophenol

2,4-D

2,4,5-TP(silvex) 93-72-1

87-86-5

110-86-1

8001-35-2

95-95-4

Hexachloroethane

Lindane

Methoxychlor

Nitrobenzene

Pentachlorophenol

Pyridine

Toxaphene

2,4,5-trichlorophenol

Metals(8-RCRA) $131.00  Volatiles(8260) $90.00  Semi-volatiles(8270) $195.00 

INDIVIDUAL PRICING:  TCLP or SPLP Extraction (one-time Charge Only) $50.00

D038

D015

D041

D042

D016

D017

D033

D034

D013

D014

D036

D037

Hexachlorobutadiene

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-82700.02

0.008

0.13

0.5

Endrin

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8270

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-6010

1311/1312-6010

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8260

1311/1312-8260

0.03

200.0

200.0

200.0

200.0

0.13

0.5

0.7

200.0

0.7

0.5

0.2

5.0

0.5

0.5

100.0

6.0

7.5

D030

D012

D031

D032

5.0

100.0

1.0

5.0

0.2

1.0

D040

D043

D020

D023

D024

D025

Heptachlor

Hexachlorobenzene

D022

D022

D027

D028

D029

D035

D039

m-Cresol

p-Cresol

Cresol

2,4-Dintrotulene

Trichloroethylene

Vinyl Chloride

Chlordane

0-Cresol

118-74-1

87-68-3

Carbon Tetrachloride

Chlorobenzene

Chloroform

1,4-Dichlorobenzene

1,2-Dicholoroethane

1,1-Dichloroethylene

Methyl Ethyl Ketone

Tetrachlorethylene

108-39-4

106-44-5

121-14-2

72-20-8

76-44-8

78-9393

127-18-4

79-01-6

75-01-4

57-75-9

95-48-7

56-23-5

109-90-7

67-66-3

106-46-7

107-06-2

75-35-4

Benzene

7440-39-3

7440-43-9

7440-47-3

7439-97-6

7782-49-2

7440-22-4

71-43-2

7439-92-1

Barium

D018

D019

D021

7440-38-2

Cadmium

Chromium

Mercury

Selenium

Silver

D007

D010

D011

D004 Arsenic

D006

D008 Lead

D005

Level (MG/L)

Method of

Analysis

D009

1311/1312-6010

1311/1312-6010

1311/1312-6010

1311/1312-7471

1311/1312-6010

TCLP/SPLP ANALYSIS AND PRICING

5.0 1311/1312-6010

FULL TCLP or SPLP: $681.00

EPA Hazardous

Waste No. Contaminant Service Number

Chemical Abstracts Regulatory 

Page 10

Agenda Page 84



Cost

$170.00

$145.00

$200.00

$315.00

$85.00

$879.00

.

Method Cost

SM9211 $110.00

SM9211 $157.00

SM9223B $20.00

SM9222B $20.00

SM9222D $20.00

EPA 1103.1 $68.00

SM9221F $48.00

SM9230C $20.00

EPA1600 $25.00

SM9213E $65.00

SM9213B $65.00

SM9260B $65.00

SM9610 $80.00

SM9222D $70.00

SM9020 $325.00

SM9020 $325.00

SM9211D $85.00

SM9240 $55.00

SM9240 $55.00

SM9211 $80.00

SM9215 $30.00

SM9610 $80.00

Method Cost

SM9020 $325.00
200.7 $115.00

Fecal Streptococci

MPN Fecal & Sludge

Bacteriological Quality DI Water

Student's T

A. Water Suitability Test

Total Plate Count* (Heterotrophic)

Mold

Analysis

Coliphage Virus

Iron Reducing Bacteria

Sulfur Reducing Bacteria

Microscopic Examination (Micro ID)

Yeast & Mold

B. Trace Metals

Microbiologicals

Enterococci

Pseudomonas

Staphylococci

Salmonella

Total Coliform 

Fecal Coliform

E.coli P/A

Laboratory Pure Water

DRINKING WATER 62-550 PRICING
(based on DEP Reporting Format 62-550.730 Revised January 2004)

Regulation Description

62-550.310 (1)

62-550.320

Inorganic Contaminants*

Secondary Contaminants

potential dioxin source. If required for facility, Dioxin by EPA Method 1613 (TCDD Only)..........$550.00 {subcontracted}

Florida DEP SAFE DW

Total Coliform/ E.Coli 

E.coli (sludge)

Microbial Identification (speciation)

Biofilm Organisms

MICROBIOLOGICAL & LAB PURE WATER TESTING

*A statewide waiver explains only those systems with known asbestos containing pipes or components are required 

Analysis

Any Microbiological samples dropped off, picked up or sampled on a Friday

or day before a Holiday will be subject to a Weekend Charge of $75.00.

62-550.310 (4)(a)
62-550.310 (4)(b)

Complete 62-550
Reporting Format #62-550.730(rev. 1/04)

$1,794.00

Volatile Organics
Synthetic Organics**

to monitor ASBESTOS. If required for your facility, Asbestos by TEM………………..……………….$275.00{subcontract}

** A Statewide waiver explains DIOXIN only needs to tested in the public water systems whose source 

is "under direct influence of surface water" or ground water wells located within 1.6 km (1.0 mile) of a 

PACKAGE-waivers

Disinfection By-Products

Radionuclides

62.550.310 (3)

62.550.310 (6)

Page 11

Agenda Page 85



05/03/2018

Corporate Insurance Advisors
1401 E Broward Blvd
Suite 103
Ft. Lauderdale FL 33301

Jaclyn Stamper
(954) 315-5000 (954) 315-5050

JStamper@ciafl.net

Florida Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc.
1460 W. McNab Road

Ft Lauderdale FL 33309

Colony Insurance Co. 39993
FCCI Insurance Company 10178

18-19 Master Cert

A PACEP306416 02/24/2018 02/24/2019

1,000,000
100,000
5,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

Contractors Liability 1,000,000

B 001-WC17A-72881 11/01/2017 11/01/2018
500,000
500,000
500,000

A
Pollution Liability
Errors & Omissions PACEP306416 02/24/2018 02/24/2019 Each Pollution Condition 1,000,000

Errors & Omissions 1,000,000

Insurer B: Workers Compensation Policy #001WC17A72882 (GA) Effective 11/01/2017 to 11/01/2018 Limits: $1,000,000/$500,000/$100,000 WC Part one
Law of the State of Georgia

Except 10 Day Notice of Cancellation for Non Payment of Premium.

Coral Spring Improvement District is included as Additional Insured as respects General Liability when required in a written agreement.

Coral Spring Improvement District
10300 N.W. 11th Manor

Coral Springs FL 33071

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

Agenda Page 86



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ninth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 87



  

      1 of 15 

WORK AUTHORIZATION 

CSID WA No. 143 

Globaltech No. 151083 

 

Pursuant to the provisions contained in the "Contract for Professional Engineering 

Consulting and Design-Build Services on a Continuing Contract Basis " between 

the CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as 

"OWNER", and  Globaltech, Inc., hereinafter referred to as "FIRM", dated July 1, 

2012  (hereinafter referred to as "AGREEMENT"), this Work Authorization 

authorizes the FIRM to provide services under the terms and conditions set forth 

herein and in the AGREEMENT, which is incorporated herein by reference as 

though set forth in full. 

 

The OWNER desires design-build services related to Site No. 12 Canal Bank 

Stabilization Design and Construction, hereinafter referred to as the “Specific 

Project”. 

 

 Site 12 – Three (3) properties located on NW 110th Way (128, 142, and 166)

  

Section 1 – Terms 

The FIRM shall be defined as an individual, corporation or contractor having a 

direct contract with the OWNER or with any other subcontractor in the performance 

of a part of the work contracted for under the terms of this Work Authorization with 

the OWNER. 

 

Section 2 – Scope of Work 

The OWNER desires design-build services related to the Site 12 - Canal Bank 

Stabilization Design and Construction herinafter referred to as the “Specific 

Project”. 

 

The FIRM will provide the following services in accordance with the AGREEMENT: 

Agenda Page 88



  

      2 of 15 

Task 1 – Engineering and Design 

Task 1.1 – Project Management 

FIRM will attend up one (1) meeting with OWNER to obtain available data 

and to coordinate applicable project issues and goals.  FIRM will obtain 

aerial photographs and property appraiser data from Broward County to 

develop project specific base maps. FIRM will conduct a field 

reconnaissance assessment of the subject site identified by OWNER from 

the canal bank.  After the site visit, field data will be cataloged and 

documented along with site photographs. 

Task 1.2 – Canal Surveying and Mapping 

FIRM will prepare a scope of work and subcontract with Avirom and 

Associates Surveyors, Inc. (Avirom).  FIRM will coordinate work with 

Avirom, the OWNER and the individual property owners to ensure that the 

required, requested survey data is obtained. Data will consist of a Records 

Survey of existing properties, cross-sections at 50-foot intervals, elevations 

at each observable grade break from the water line of the canal extending 

approximately 20 feet onto private property, structures and vegetation.  

Elevations will be referenced to NAVD 1988 vertical datum.  FIRM will use 

survey data to prepare cross sectional designs for private property 

remediation and plan drawings presented in the Final Design (Task 1.3). 

Task 1.3 – Canal Bank Stabilization Final Design 

Based on the information collected from Work Authorization 121 and Task 

1.2, FIRM will prepare construction plans with details and specification 

notes to implement a stone rip-rap canal bank stabilization at Site 12.  It is 

assumed that all work will be conducted from within the canal. The 

construction plans will be executed to the 60-percent complete level 

(sufficient to be executed by the FIRM) and will include the following sheets 

(7 total sheets): 

 

Agenda Page 89



  

      3 of 15 

• Cover Sheet (1 sheet) 

• General Notes and Legend (1 sheet) 

• Typical Section Sheets (1 sheets) 

• Plan Sheets (1 sheets) 

• Cross Section Sheets (1 sheets) 

• Detail Sheets (1 sheets) 

• Pollution Prevention Plan Sheets (1 sheets) 

FIRM will develop supplemental specifications to clarify the work activities 

and sequence of work.  Specifications will be incorporated on the 

construction plans.   

FIRM will develop and submit three (3) sets of construction contract 

documents (plans, notes and clarifications) for review and comment by 

CSID at the 60 percent completion milestones.  With the Final, 60-percent 

design, FIRM will prepare and submit a firm cost for construction.  

Assumptions 
 

Assumptions for the project are as follows: 

• FIRM will coordinate assessment work with adjacent property owners. 

• Utility location will be included in the base survey.  Contractor will verify 

utility locations with location service prior to commencing work. 

• Permit applications for implementing the proposed improvements are 

not part of this evaluation. 

• A significant alternatives evaluation will not be conducted to evaluate 

various remedial approaches.  It is assumed that a rip-rap solution will 

be implemented. 

• Construction plans will be developed to the 60-percent complete level; 

sufficient for execution by FIRM.  Should OWNER desire to advertise 

and competitively bid project construction, the plans and specifications 

will be developed to 100-percent completion for additional fee. 

• Bidding support services are not included in this evaluation. 

Agenda Page 90



  

      4 of 15 

Task 2 – Project Management and Construction Services  

1. Prepare construction schedule. 

2. Conduct Kick-Off meeting with the OWNER to review the project 

approach and schedule. 

3. Coordinate with the OWNER and adjacent, impacted property owners 

as to the extent of work and duration. 

4. Collect pre-construction video and photographs of the construction 

areas and the adjacent properties. 

5. Coordinate traffic issues with the City of Coral Springs.  This task will 

include development of Maintenance of Traffic Plan and easement 

access along Riverside Drive. 

6. Conduct weekly meetings with OWNER to provide updates on project 

progress. 

7. Attend monthly Board Meetings to provide project updates. 

8. Assess technical submittals for materials and methods provided by 

Contractor.  Review submittals with OWNER and make 

recommendations for modifications and/or revisions.  

9. Oversee construction activities enforcing the conditions of the design. 

10. Review elevations and limits of construction establishing the finished 

base, grade and top of slope. 

11. Answer Subcontractor’s requests for information regarding the civil 

plans and specifications.  Because the design was only taken to the 60-

percent complete level, it may be necessary to develop additional design 

details or to address differing field conditions. 

12. Conduct progress meetings with Subcontractor and Owner.  Review 

project progress against master schedule and review record information 

collected and deviations from project design. 

13. Conduct Substantial Completion inspection and meetings at the 

completion at the three properties.  Develop punch-list items in 

association with OWNER for Subcontractor to address prior to Final 

Completion at each site. 

Agenda Page 91



  

      5 of 15 

14. Conduct Final Completion inspection meeting and site walk through with 

OWNER and Subcontractor at each of the three properties. 

15. Collect post-construction photographs and video of each of the sites 

following Final Completion inspection. 

16. Review and comment / approve Subcontractor’s pay request prior to 

submittal OWNER. 

17. Review the as-built survey prepared by Subcontractor and provide 

comments and/or recommended corrections.  This will assure the 

Engineer of Record that all aspects of the project were constructed in 

substantial conformance to the Plans and Specifications.  Once the final 

as-built survey has been submitted, Engineer will prepare record 

drawings for OWNER’s documentation. 

18. Following final submission of the record drawings, the Engineer of 

Record will issue a Construction Certification Letter stating that the 

project was completed in substantial accordance with the plans. 

 

Task 3 - Construction 

Construction Services will include all work necessary to implement Canal 

Bank Stabilization (Site 12) Design.  Specific activities will include the 

following: 

 

1. Establish construction base line survey for the implementation of 

specific improvements at each of the three properties sites. 

2. Locate existing utilities within easement right-of-way. 

3. Collect pre-construction walk-though and photographic documentation. 

4. Test run and document status of homeowner’s irrigation systems. 

5. Mobilize equipment and materials necessary to perform work. 

6. Implement MOT for Riverside Drive. 

7. Establish staging area along Riverside Drive and Canal L-204 

intersection. Construct temporary ramp to access canal. 

Agenda Page 92



  

      6 of 15 

8. Remove and dispose of landscaping encroaching into canal right-of-way 

and construction zone. 

9. Install silt barriers within the canal to limit construction runoff into the 

canals at both ends of construction activities. 

10. Remove homeowner’s irrigation intake piping. Lock out irrigation system 

pumps. 

11. Mobilize barges and construction equipment into canal. 

12. Establish design grade of canal banks as per design by removing 

organic materials along canal bank.  Verify grades and elevations using 

field GPS survey equipment. Dispose of organic material at an off-site 

location. 

13. Place rip-rap stone per design.  During the placement of rip-rap stone, 

divers will be in the canal to insure proper placement. 

14. Install and anchor geotextile per design. 

15. Place top soil per design. 

16. Extend private irrigation lines into the canal and finish per design. 

17. Extend 24-inch drainage culvert beyond canal bank as per design. 

18. Install sod St. Augustine sod to match existing. 

19. Collect final elevations using a licensed land surveyor.  Final elevations 

will be compared to design drawings. 

20. Install new chain-link fence parallel to canal at 128 and 142 NW 110th 

Way.  FIRM will be responsible for obtaining permits from City of Coral 

Springs.  

21. Clean and restore construction sites prior to Substantial Completion 

Inspection.  

22. De-mobilize and remove all equipment from Site 12 staging area and 

Owner’s facilities prior to final inspection. 

 

Additional Construction Activities: 

 

Agenda Page 93



  

      7 of 15 

1. Site 12 – prepare staging area at the intersection of the L-204 

Canal and Riverside Drive. Geotextile fabric will be used to 

segregate rock from sod. Following completion of work, remove 

rock pad, restore grade and re-sod to match original conditions. 

2. A flag person will be on site during working hours to direct traffic 

near and around construction vehicles during equipment and 

material deliveries.   

3. Roadway will be kept clean of construction materials. 

4. Following completion of construction, the roadway will be cleaned 

and the staging area restored to original condition. 

 

Assumptions 

Assumptions for the project are as follows: 

• An allowance of $20,000 is included with this project.  Allowance is only 

to be accessed with OWNER’s written approval.  Unused portion of 

allowance to be credited back to OWNER.  Allowance is in place for use 

at the OWNER’s discretion for additional work or for unforeseen 

conditions.  

• A permitting allowance of $800 has been provided to obtain fence 

permits for two (2) new chain link fences.  FIRM is authorized to spend 

up to allowance total without additional authorization from OWNER. 

• Working hours will be Monday through Friday from approximately 8:00 

AM until 6:00 PM. 

• Work at Site 12 will begin no earlier than September 10, 2018. 

• Subcontractor’s price includes up to 665 tons of rip-rap bedding material.  

In the event that a quantity less than this amount is used, OWNER will 

be reimbursed at the rate of $39.44 / ton for unused material. 

• Subcontractor to provide sanitary facilities at job site in the vicinity of the 

staging area. 

• Permits will not be required for work performed within the CSID right-of-

way.  Vegetation removal permits will not be required. 

Agenda Page 94



  

      8 of 15 

• Disturbed irrigation systems will be returned to their existing conditions.  

Property Owner will be requested to demonstrate system operation prior 

to construction disturbance. 

• Structural repair to adjacent facilities not due to canal bank stabilization 

activities is beyond the scope of this project.  No decks, docks or other 

structures will be disturbed or replaced under this work authorization. 

• A 5-week construction duration, including mobilization and 

demobilization is assumed. 

 

Section 3 – Location 

The services to be performed by the FIRM shall be at Site 12 and include the 

following three properties:  

• 128 NW 110th Way 

• 142 NW 110th Way 

• 166 NW 110th Way 

 

Section 4 – Deliverables 

The FIRM will provide the following Deliverables to OWNER: 

• Boundary survey of subject properties 

• 60-percent Design – Site 12 Canal Bank Remediation 

• Pre and post-construction video and still pictures of adjacent 

properties 

• Submittals for materials to be used in the restoration process (rock 

geotextile fabric, No. 2 DOT coarse aggregate (rip-rap), and sod). 

• Canal bank improvements  

• Lien releases from all subcontractors 

• Record Drawings of Improvements 

• Construction Certification 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 95



  

      9 of 15 

Section 5 – Time of Performance 

Project will commence after execution of this Work Authorization and a Notice to 

Proceed is issued by OWNER. The FIRM and OWNER agree to the following 

schedule: 

 

Task       Time Elapsed from NTP  

Notice to Proceed (NTP) 0 Days 

Site Survey                          30 Days 

Engineering and Design                          75 Days 

Design Review                          90 Days 

Mobilization                        120 Days 

Substantial completion                        155 Days 

Final Completion                        170 Days 

Submission of Record 
Drawings and Certificate of 
Completion 

                       185 Days 

 
 

Section 6 – Method and Amount of Compensation 

1. The FIRM shall be paid by the OWNER in accordance with the Florida’s 

Prompt Payment Act Florida Statute 218.70-79 and in accordance with the 

payment method as set forth in Section 6 of the AGREEMENT.  The 

calculations shall begin using the date the invoice was received.   

2. Total job price:  $346,315.  Price includes bonding and a construction 

allowance of $20,000.00. 

3. On the terms contained in the FIRM’s said proposal for the doing of said 

work and the said award therefore, and the specifications herein specifically 

referred to and made a part of this contract.  

4. The cost for the above scope of services is a lump sum (LS).  The LS is 

based on the materials, methods, and assumptions presented in the scope 

of services and may be adjusted based on final detail design and alternative 

selections or omissions.  The LS shall not be greater than the stated amount 

unless there is an approved increase in the scope of services.   

5. A Budget Summary for the above LS is provided in Attachment A.   

 

Agenda Page 96



  

      10 of 15 

Section 7 – Application for Progress Payment 

1. Unless otherwise prescribed by law, at the end of each month, the FIRM 

shall submit to the OWNER for review, an Application for Progress Payment 

filled out and signed by the FIRM covering the Work completed as of the 

date of the Application and accompanied by such supporting documentation 

as is required by the AGREEMENT.  

2. The Application for Progress Payment shall identify the amount of the FIRM 

Total Earnings to Date based upon value of original contract Work 

performed to date as approved by fully executed Change Orders.  

3. Payment shall be based upon percentage of work completed based upon 

the approved schedule of values. Retainage in the amount of 10% will be 

withheld on the calculated value of any work, with the exception of stored 

materials which may be paid at the supplier's invoiced cost. At FIRM's 

request, after 50% completion of the work has been achieved, the OWNER 

will implement a reduction in retainage to 5% of all future pay requests. If 

retainage is reduced, FIRM may not withhold more than 5% retainage from 

subcontractors or suppliers and will be required to certify compliance with 

F.S. 218.70 et seq on each subsequent pay application. Notwithstanding 

the foregoing, in no instance can the amount retained be less than the value 

of OWNER's good faith claims plus the value of the work the OWNER 

determines remains to be put in place or required to be performed as 

remedial activities. For the purposes of this section, 50% completion shall 

be that point in time when OWNER determines that half of the Work 

required by the Contract has been completed. In no event shall the Work 

be determined to be 50% completed before the OWNER has paid 50% of 

the Contract amount and 50% of the Contract time has expired. The amount 

of previous Pay Estimate payments shall then be subtracted to equal the 

Balance Due during the Pay Estimate period.  

4. When the OWNER determines the Work to be Substantially Complete, the 

OWNER may reduce the retainage to five percent (5%) of the dollar value 

of all Work satisfactorily completed to date, provided that the FIRM is 

Agenda Page 97



  

      11 of 15 

making satisfactory progress toward Final Completion of the Work, that in 

the opinion of both the Engineer and the OWNER there is no specific cause 

for a greater retainage, and the FIRM obtains the written consent of the 

Surety Companies furnishing the required Public Construction Bond on 

consent forms provided by the OWNER. The OWNER may reinstate the 

retainage up to ten percent (10%) if the OWNER determines, at its 

discretion or the Engineer's discretion, that the FIRM is not making 

satisfactory progress toward final completion of the Work or where there is 

other specific cause for such withholding.  

5. Partial payment may be made for the delivered cost of stored materials 

planned for incorporation into the Work, provided such materials meet the 

requirements of this Contract, the Contract Drawings, and the 

Specifications, and are delivered and suitably stored at the project site, or 

at another location acceptable to the OWNER.  Such material must be 

stored in a secure manor acceptable to the OWNER, and in accordance 

with the manufacturer's recommendations.   

6. The delivered cost of such stored or stockpiled materials may be included 

in any subsequent application for payment provided the FIRM meets the 

following conditions:  

a. An applicable purchase order or supplier's invoice is provided listing 

the materials in detail, the cost of each item, and identifies this 

specific contract by name. 

b. The materials are fully insured against loss or damage (from 

whatever source) or disappearance prior to incorporation into the 

Work.  

c. Stored materials approved for payment by the OWNER shall not be 

removed from the designated storage area except for incorporation 

into the Work. 

d. Evidence that the FIRM has verified quantity and quality of the 

materials delivered (verified packing list). 

Agenda Page 98



  

      12 of 15 

7. It is further agreed between the parties that the transfer of title and the 

OWNER's payment for any stored or stockpiled materials pursuant to 

these General Conditions, and any applicable provisions of the 

Supplementary General Conditions, shall in no way relieve the FIRM of 

the responsibility of ensuring the correctness of those materials and for 

furnishing and placing such materials in accordance with the 

requirements of this Contract, the Contract Drawings, the Technical 

Specifications, and any approved changes thereto. 

8. The following monthly Application for Progress Payment shall be 

accompanied by Bills of Sale, copies of paid invoices, releases of lien, 

or other documentation warranting that the FIRM has received the 

stored materials and equipment free and clear of all liens, charges, 

security interests, and encumbrances (which are hereinafter in these 

General Conditions referred to as "Liens") and evidence that the stored 

materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance 

and other arrangements to protect the OWNER's interest therein, all of 

which shall be satisfactory to the OWNER.  

9. The FIRM shall warrant and guarantee that title to all Work, materials, 

and equipment covered by an Application for Progress Payment, 

whether incorporated in the Work or not, will pass to the OWNER no 

later than the time of Final Payment free and clear of all liens or other 

encumbrances.  

10. The Engineer shall, within ten (10) days after receipt of each Application 

for Progress Payment, either indicate in writing a recommendation of 

payment and present the Application to the OWNER, or return the 

Application to the FIRM indicating in writing the Engineer's reasons for 

refusing to recommend payment. In the latter case, the FIRM may make 

the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application. Twenty (20) 

days after presentation of the application for progress payment to the 

OWNER with the Engineer's recommendation, the amount approved will 

Agenda Page 99



  

      13 of 15 

(subject to the provisions of the following Paragraph) become due and 

when due will be paid by the OWNER to the FIRM.  

In the event any dispute with respect to any payment or pay request 

cannot be resolved between the Contractor and Owner's project staff, 

Contractor may, in accordance with the alternative dispute resolution 

requirements of Florida Statute section 218.72, et seq, demand in writing 

a meeting with and review by the OWNER’S (agency) director. In the 

absence of the agency director, a deputy director may conduct the 

meeting and review. Such meeting and review shall occur within ten (10) 

business days of receipt by OWNER of FIRM’s written demand. The 

OWNER’s manager, shall issue a written decision on the dispute within 

ten (10) business days of such meeting. This decision shall be deemed 

the OWNER's final decision for the purposes of the Local Government 

Prompt Payment Act.  

11. The OWNER may refuse to make payment of the full amount 

recommended by the Engineer because claims have been made against 

the OWNER on account of the FIRM's performance of the Work, or 

because Liens have been filed in connection with the Work, or there are 

other items entitling the OWNER to a credit against the amount 

recommended, but the OWNER must give the FIRM written notice within 

twenty (20) business days after the date on which the invoice is stamped 

as received (with a copy to the Engineer) which specifies the invoice 

deficiency and any action necessary to make the invoice complete and 

proper. 

Section 8 – Responsibilities 

The FIRM shall, under no circumstance, look to the OWNER to provide any labor 

or equipment for the FIRM.  The FIRM shall provide all of the labor and equipment 

necessary to perform the job or services contracted for at the expense of the FIRM.  

Property of any kind that may be on the premises, which are the site of the 

performance of this contract, during the performance of this Work Authorization, 

shall be at the sole risk of the FIRM. 

Agenda Page 100



  

      14 of 15 

8.1 The OWNER hereby designates Shawn Frankenhauser as the 

OWNER's representative. 

8.2 In addition to applicable provisions of Section 2 of the AGREEMENT, 

the OWNER will: 

• Provide copies of existing drawings and equipment cut sheets if 

requested by FIRM 

 

The FIRM acknowledges and understands that it is an independent contractor in 

its relationship with the OWNER.  The FIRM hereby designates Rick Olson as the 

FIRM’s representative.  

 

Section 9 – Insurance 

The FIRM shall provide certificate of insurance to the OWNER setting forth the 

type and amount of insurance carried by the FIRM and conforming to the minimum 

requirements set forth in the AGREEMENT.   

 

Section 10 – Level of Service 

The OWNER shall have the right to terminate said Agreement by giving the FIRM 

thirty (30) days written notice if the service that is being provided is not maintained 

at levels necessary to provide the required service.  The OWNER will determine in 

its sole judgment what constitutes a satisfactory level of service. 

 

Section 11 – Indemnification 

The Firm shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner and its officers and 

employees as set forth in Section 11 of the Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 101



  

      15 of 15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Work Authorization, consisting of  fifteen (15)  

pages and Attachment A has been caused fully executed on behalf of the FIRM 

by its duly authorized officer, and the OWNER has the same to be duly name and 

in its behalf, effective as of the date herein above written. 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Signature of Witness 

 

_____________________________ 

Printed name of Witness 

 

CORAL SPRINGS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

_________________________________ 

Signature of President 

 

Dr. Marty Shank____________________                                                            

Printed Name of President 

_________________________________ 

Date 

 Approved as to form and legality 

 

_________________________________ 

District Counsel 

State of Florida 

County of Palm Beach 

The foregoing instrument was 

acknowledged before me on this 

 

___ day of _________, 2018 by  

_________________________  

who is personally known to me OR 

produced ____________________ 

as identification. 

____________________________ 

Signature of Notary  

ENGINEER 

 

Globaltech, Inc.________________________ 

Company 

 

_____________________________________ 

Signature 

Troy Lyn, P.E., Vice President                         . 

Name and Title (typed or printed) 

 

May 21, 2018____________________________________ 

Date 
 

Agenda Page 102



 

  

Attachment A 

 

Budget Summary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 103



Agenda Page 104



Agenda Page 105



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tenth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 106



 

 

May 11, 2018 
 
Ken Cassel, Manager 
Coral Springs Improvement District 
10300 NW 11th Manor 
Coral Springs, FL 33071 
 
Re: CVS  
 11375 West Atlantic Boulevard 
 Storm Water Management Improvements Associated with Building Permit Activity.   
Ken: 
 
As directed, this office reviewed plans depicting interior construction at CVS 11375 West 
Atlantic Boulevard.  The extent of improvements depicted on the plans consist primarily of 
changes to flooring, cabinetry, and merchandise displays.  The developer’s professional 
indicated that only interior work is being performed.   
 
In response to observed and documented lapses in compliance with storm water 
management standards the Coral Springs Improvement District enacted in 2016 
requirements for existing, developed sites to demonstrate compliance with storm water 
management criteria when applying for building permits and as part of the 5-year 
recertification program.  Projects or sites that fail to meet one or more criteria are required 
to improve the performance or function of the storm water management system.  Projects 
submitted for building permit are evaluated by the District to establish what, if any, 
improvements are required to comply with the stricter of the 5-year recertification 
requirements or the District’s redevelopment criteria.   
 
This CVS, located at 11375 West Atlantic received a permit (#95-15) from the District in 
1994.  It was last renewed in 2015 and will need to be recertified prior to 2020.  Record 
plans for this site depict a system built without the required water quality treatment.  The 
construction depicted on plans provided to the District for the CVS at 11375 West Atlantic 
Boulevard and depict interior construction only consisting of changes to flooring, cabinetry, 
and displays.  This level of construction corresponds to Category 1 redevelopment.   
 
As a Category 1 redevelopment project this site will need to: 

1. Provide or demonstrate the presence of a properly functioning pollution retardant 
baffle prior to this project’s discharge off-site or to the District’s facilities.   

2. Identify the extent of storage or water quality treatment provided on this site and 
utilized by other systems.  

3. Document the presence of easements over the public water and sewer mains 
crossing this site.   

 

Agenda Page 107



CVS 11375 West Atlantic 
Storm water management associated with redevelopement 
May 11, 2018 
Page 2 

   

While this site is not required to construct significant storm water improvements at this 
time, the applicant/owner should be informed that this site was constructed without the 
required water quality treatment and is likely deficient in storage for the 10 and 100-year 
storm events.  Significant drainage improvements consisting of water quality treatment 
measures and storage for the 10-year storm will be required of this site as part of the 2nd 
round storm water recertification that is schedule to occur prior to 2025.   
 
This office has no objection to a building permit for this site being issued provided: 

1. Pollution retardant baffles are installed or demonstrated to exist and function at all 
outfalls from this property.  The installation of these PRBs must be confirmed prior 
to the building permits being closed out for this site.   

2. The owner and permittee are notified that significant drainage improvements are 
required prior to 2025.   

 
As always if you have any questions please feel free to contact me.   
 
Regards, 
 
 
Glen A. Hanks, P.E. 

Agenda Page 108



Florida License #'s: Architecture/Interior Design: AA-C001123

4112 Cypress Street - Tampa, Florida  33607 - 813-879-6996
612 South Military Trail - Deerfield Beach, Florida  33442 - 954-428-9361

Agenda Page 109



CVS 4808 THH SCOPE OF WORK CVS 4808 SBR SCOPE OF WORK

EXIT
ONLY

EMERGENCY

EXIT
ONLY

EMERGENCY

E
X
I
T

EMERGENCY

EXIT
ONLY

E
X
I
T

WOMENMEN

10
A0.1

4' 
- 0

" M
AX

.
TO

P 
OF

 O
N-

SC
RE

EN
 C

ON
TR

OL
S

10
A0.1

Florida License #'s: Architecture/Interior Design: AA-C001123

4112 Cypress Street - Tampa, Florida  33607 - 813-879-6996
612 South Military Trail - Deerfield Beach, Florida  33442 - 954-428-9361

Agenda Page 110



B

R

P

89'  SEASONAL w/LOWBOYS

P
H

O
TO

P
R

O
C

E
SS

IN
G




















FF18

FF20

FLOORING LEGEND

FF1

FF22

FF1

FF1

FF1

FF1

FF1

FF18

FF20

FF22FF22

P
H

O
N

E
 C

H
A

R
G

IN
G

 IM
PU

LS
E 

R
AC

K

N
A

TU
R

A
L

CS

B
E

A
U

TY
IM

P
LU

LS
E

REVLON 144X78 W/HS NO TSTR FIXTURE

LORL 180X78 ECLIPSE NR W/HS

MAYBL 168X78 W/HS

COVERGIRL 96X78 W/HS

ALMAY 48X78

NYX 60X78 SVO WALL

*ACC IMP 77X78 FT

*SAL NAIL 72X78 W/ BTY 360 NAIL

SAL HAN 52X78

VINYLUX 24X78

ART NAIL 33X78

YR RD SUMR FL NONBEACH

SEAS +32 DEGREE WASHER FLUID

SUPERBOWL VALENTINES

SEAS EASTER/SPRING  REORDERABLES

SEASONAL FLU ENDCAP 2009-2010

SEAS CHRISTMAS REORDERABLES 2011

SEAS BUG OFF FL/TX

ICE MELT

SUMMER SUN 9X60 (3)

SEAS FIRE LOGS CHAIN

SEAS BTS SOUTH MED HIGH

SEAS PAMPERS SPLASHERS

SEAS STAR SHOWER

Add Me

FOOT ECK 9X78 (3)
EYE CR ECK

6X72 (3)
SNCKS BAGGED

W/HLTH 8X78
SIMPLY

FRITO 4X78 FRITO

DSD HLTH REF RI 4DRICEBEER BEV CLR 6 DOOR WI CL1 MILK ICECRMFRZR
DSD HEALTHY
FREEZER 1DR

SIP SNACK
& GO RACK

30IN

*R
X

 C
/O

 8
X3

4

PROMO
BULK

H
LT

H
E

N
D

C
AP

P
A

IN
 R

EL
IE

F

POWER
WING

(OPEN)

N
U

TR
N

 B
AR

S
W

/H
LT

H
 C

U
ST

FI
XT

FIRST AID 24X72

PAIN RELIEF RT LIF 21X72 (3)

DME
ECK

3X72 (3)

C
K/

C
R

KR
 8

X7
2 

W
/H

LT
H

GROCRY 39X60 EAST THH1 (3)A
PT

H
C

R
Y

EC 2X
60

NRT
PW

SNCKS W/HLTH 36X60 LT THH3 (3)

TREND
ZONE

3X60 SUP

PC

P
R

O
M

O
B

U
LK

H
LT

H
 E

N
D

C
AP

C
O

LD
R

E
M

E
D

IE
S

G
FT

 C
R

D
EC

EXT PAIN LT W/CMP ECK 18X72 (3) PERS INTIMACY
6X72 (3)

LC

ALRGY ECK 9X72 (3)

VAP HUM
ECK 3X72

(3) CH REM LIF ECK 12X72 (3)

WINE WARM SODA WRM JUIC ECK 9X60 (3) WATER ECK 9X60 (3)

TISS ECK 6X60
(3)

CPS/PLTS TRBG
6X60 (3)PET ECK 12X60 (3)

BULB/HH
REP

3X60 (3) BLK PPR ECK 12X60 (3)

H
LT

H
E

N
D

C
AP

A
LL

E
R

G
Y

3 
FO

R
 $

3
P

E
R

M
2X

60
 E

C

POWER
WING

(OPEN)

C
O

N
C

TE
D

H
LT

H
3X

54
/6

0

FI
LM

S
P

IN
N

E
R

E
LE

V
W

/P
H

O
N

E
S

H
LT

H
E

N
D

C
A

P
 V

IT
2 

M
U

LT
I

COLD LIF 24X72

POWER
WING

(OPEN)

VITMN LIF ECK 33X72 (3)

E
N

D
C

A
P

(O
P

E
N

)

SEWING
NEEDS

PW

H
O

M
E

TS
T 

E
C

K
3X

54
 (3

)

INSCT
DC ECK
3X60 (3)

FLOOR
CARE

3X60 (3)

HH CLN 30X60 THH RT (3)

CNDY LT ECK 36X60 (3)

M
AG

N
IV

SN

BS

E
N

D
C

A
P

(O
P

E
N

)

SHOE
PW

H
LT

H
E

N
D

C
A

P
 V

IT
1 

B
R

D
LI

N
E

CS

B
AT

T 
EC

AR
C

H
6X

68

DIET W/O BASIC 15X72 (3) VITMN LIF ECK 33X72 (3)
SEAS

S
E

A
S

O
N

AL

PREM CHC 6X60
(3)

SEASONAL SEASONALO
TC

 H
C

B
LA

B
EL

E
VE

N
T

O
SEASONAL SEASONALD

IA
B

 4
X6

0

E
N

D
C

A
P

(O
P

E
N

)

SEAS

HR
ACS
PW BCKT TREE TRK

H
LT

H
 E

N
D

C
AP

D
IG

ES
TI

VE
H

EA
LT

H

H
BL

/P
C

E
LE

VA
TE

D
EC

B
EH

IN
D

 C
/O

 G
R

A
P

H
IC

S

D
M

E
C

A
N

E
R

A
C

K

SEASONAL

ORAL ECK 39X60  (3)

BASE C
HCB*D

R
S

C
H

O
LL

S
K

IO
S

K

LP TIER 3

S
U

N
G

LA
S

SE
S

B
EA

U
TY

TO
 G

O
 1

R
AC

K

N
R

T 
P

B
H

 6
X7

2 
(3

)

BATT
PW1
2X48

LIP
CARE
PW

C
/O

 C
N

D
Y

 A
D

A 
24

X3
4 

R
T

E
N

D
C

A
P

(O
P

E
N

) NEWS/TABLOID

H
A

IR
 C

AR
E

E
LE

V
A

TE
D

E
C

STATNRY ECK 30X72 (3)

TOY PRTY ECK
6X72 (3) BBY CR ECK SCR 9X72 (3) BBY ACC (3) 6X72 BBY FD MJN ECK (3) 9X72

PZ

M
AG

AZ
IN

ES

E
N

D
C

A
P

(O
P

E
N

)

BEANIE
BABY
PW EE

DEOD ECK 12X60  (3) SHAVE W/HR RT AKP 27X60 (3)

RB

C
O

KE
FL

M

HR ACS 12X60

TEXTURED
HRCR

3X60 (3)

HAIR
APPL

3X60 (3) HR STY 6X60 (3)
SAL INSP ECK

6X60 (3)
SAL HRCR E&M ECK 9X60

(3)

S
P

L 
PW

D
H

C
B

 L
A

BE
L

E
V

E
N

T

BODY MIST
FLSTD
W/EOB

LIF MIX (NO
DA)

*E
LF

C
O

S
M

E
TI

C
S

E
C

CNDL W/PW BBY WPS ECK
6X72 (3)

BBY DIAP ECK SCR 21X72 (3) HONEST
BABY

3X72/78

O
R

G
A

N
IC

D
R

 E
LE

V
B

TY
 S

B
 E

C

TR
IA

L 
W

/T
R

Y 
M

E 
O

PT
8X

72

HALLMARK

HR CLR ECK HSP 18X60 (3) SHMP CND ECK RT 24X60 (3)

BRT BEE
3X60 (3)

SUN CR FL ECK
6X60 (3)

ACNE ECK 9X60
W/EFFACLAR (3) FACE LT ECK 24X60 (3)

C
N

D
L 

A
H

 E
C

W
/W

IN
G

3X
60

FA

*R
IM

M
EL

3S
D

E
LE

V 
EC

23

* 
N

A
IL

 H
Q

P
AR

TI
AL

FA
C

E
E

LE
VA

TE
D

N
B 

EC

M
IL

N
E

LE
V

A
TE

D
E

C
 3

6X
60

N
EU

T
E

LE
VA

TE
D

E
N

D
C

AP

4

LE
G

G
S

4X
78

NATURALS
YESTO
3X60

HBL W/O ACNE ECK 15X60 (3)
* NAIL HQ
PARTIAL

HALLMARK

B360 BATH
ACC

3X60(3) PERS CLNS 15X60 ECK (3)

BAM SSCU
W/DK

BAM SSCU
W/DK

MAKEUP
ACADEMY ON

PARTIAL NAIL HQFEM HYG ECK 30X72 (3)

C
TT

N
24

X
66

EC

9

H
A

N
D

 &
 B

O
D

Y
E

LE
V

A
TE

D
E

N
D

C
AP

LA
 G

IR
L

E
LE

VA
TE

D
E

N
D

C
AP

P
H

Y
S 

FO
R

M
E

LE
V

A
TE

D
E

C
 3

6X
60

H
&

S
 4

X7
8

FRAG 8X72/78

BAM 8X72COS 80W NT SVO

COSM LVL
2

COS MGR
NOTES

SVO

HERSHEY
SYRUP
RACK

FL 17 MID
CL1

 J-HOOKS BARWARE
J-HOOKS

THRESHOLD
BEVERAGE

LABELS

GE GINGER
ALE LABEL

EVENT

WATER
FILTRATION SKUS

LABEL EVENT

LACTAID
SUPPLEMENT

FIXTURE

REGIONAL
WTR

ZEPHYRHILLS

REGIONAL
DRNK WATER
ZEPHYRHILLS

DAIRY
LABELS

WH

 ALL
STORES

TRK

TAKE-AWAY
PHARMACY
PROGRAM

ZONNIC
MINI WING

PAIN RELIEF
POWDERS

LABEL EVENT

FSHN READ
GLASSES

MENS

TOC F4PSE LVL1 PSE RX
LVL 1 3X84

(3)

RX RETAIL
ITEMS

REVLON
HOT SPOT

LABELS

MAYBELLINE
HOT SPOT

LABELS

COVERGIRL
HOT SPOT

LABELS

LOREAL
HOT SPOT

LABELS

PERFECT
SCENTS

CODING LABELS

BOD TRK SUNPASS-FL
ECK

BHD
CHECKOUT

18X72 (3)

REGIONAL
GIFT CARDS
- FL (DC: FL)

PHOTO
RETAIL ITEMS

W/DUPLEX

PHOTO APX/KIS
W/DUP W/O FP

HELIUM
BALLOON

RACK

GRTG CRD
TAPE DSP

POSTAGE
STAMPS

PET BED
RACK

READING
GLASSES
END 3X66

BATT CANS
1X1

UPSELL

36x14x78 48x16x78

51x36x60
36x14x72

36x16x72

48
x1

6x
78

36x18x60

36x18x60

37
x3

7x
60

36x14x72

36x18x72
36x14x60

36x18x60

36x18x72

36x14x72 36x18x60

36x18x60

36x14x72

36x18x72 36x14x60 48x16x54

36x14x60 48x16x54

36x18x72

36x14x72
36x14x60

36x16x60

36
x1

4x
72

36x14x72

36x14x7236
x1

3x
78

36x14x60

36x14x60

48
x1

3x
78

36x18x72

36x18x72 48x18x72 36x14x60

36x14x60

36x14x6048x18x7236x18x72

36x14x60

48x16x60

48x16x6036x14x72

48x13x78

48x13x7848x13x78

ASTV
3X72
W/PW

SM ELC ECK
6X72 (3)

CHILD
BOOKS
3X72 (3)

FRM/ALB
NEW 2T

WIRE 3X72ART CRFT ECK 9X72 (3)

ASTV
3X72
W/PW

BASIC NUTR
6X72 (3)

ADLT CR ECK 18X72 (3)

DIG HLTH LIF ECK 24X72(3)

Florida License #'s: Architecture/Interior Design: AA-C001123

4112 Cypress Street - Tampa, Florida  33607 - 813-879-6996
612 South Military Trail - Deerfield Beach, Florida  33442 - 954-428-9361

Agenda Page 111



Florida License #'s: Architecture/Interior Design: AA-C001123

4112 Cypress Street - Tampa, Florida  33607 - 813-879-6996
612 South Military Trail - Deerfield Beach, Florida  33442 - 954-428-9361

AD-1

2

Agenda Page 112



Florida License #'s: Architecture/Interior Design: AA-C001123

4112 Cypress Street - Tampa, Florida  33607 - 813-879-6996
612 South Military Trail - Deerfield Beach, Florida  33442 - 954-428-9361

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

FRONT WALL DEMOLITION ELEVATION 

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

LEFT DEMOLITION ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

REAR WALL DEMOLITION ELEVATION 

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

RIGHT SIDE DEMOLITION ELEVATION 

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

EMPLOYEE HALLWAY DEMOLITION ELEVATION 

Agenda Page 113



Florida License #'s: Architecture/Interior Design: AA-C001123

4112 Cypress Street - Tampa, Florida  33607 - 813-879-6996
612 South Military Trail - Deerfield Beach, Florida  33442 - 954-428-9361

A-3

2

Agenda Page 114



Florida License #'s: Architecture/Interior Design: AA-C001123

4112 Cypress Street - Tampa, Florida  33607 - 813-879-6996
612 South Military Trail - Deerfield Beach, Florida  33442 - 954-428-9361

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

FRONT WALL ELEVATION 

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

LEFT ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

REAR WALL ELEVATION 

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION 

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

EMPLOYEE HALLWAY ELEVATION 

Agenda Page 115



Florida License #'s: Architecture/Interior Design: AA-C001123

4112 Cypress Street - Tampa, Florida  33607 - 813-879-6996
612 South Military Trail - Deerfield Beach, Florida  33442 - 954-428-9361

Agenda Page 116



SCOPE OF WORK

ELECTRICAL KEY NOTES

PHOTOLAB ELECTRICAL KEY NOTES

FF1

FF1

FF1

FF1

FF1

FF18

FF20

FF22FF22

N
AT

U
R

AL

CS

B
E

A
U

TY
IM

P
LU

LS
E

Florida License #'s: Architecture/Interior Design: AA-C001123

4112 Cypress Street - Tampa, Florida  33607 - 813-879-6996
612 South Military Trail - Deerfield Beach, Florida  33442 - 954-428-9361

E-1

3

CONSULTING ENGINEERS, LLC

W
&

W
hitelocke

illiams

KEY PLAN
SCALE:  1/32" = 1'-0"E-1

1

E-1

4

E-1

2

E-1

6

Agenda Page 117



LIVE

ELECTRICAL RENOVATION NOTES ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATIONS

COORDINATION NOTES

FF1

FF1

FF1

FF1

FF1

FF18

FF20

FF22FF22

N
AT

U
R

AL

CS

B
E

A
U

TY
IM

P
LU

LS
E

ELECTRICAL KEY NOTES

Florida License #'s: Architecture/Interior Design: AA-C001123

4112 Cypress Street - Tampa, Florida  33607 - 813-879-6996
612 South Military Trail - Deerfield Beach, Florida  33442 - 954-428-9361

CONSULTING ENGINEERS, LLC

W
&

W
hitelocke

illiams

KEY PLAN
SCALE:  1/32" = 1'-0"E-2

1

E-2

3

E-2

2

Agenda Page 118



Florida License #'s: Architecture/Interior Design: AA-C001123

4112 Cypress Street - Tampa, Florida  33607 - 813-879-6996
612 South Military Trail - Deerfield Beach, Florida  33442 - 954-428-9361

CONSULTING ENGINEERS, LLC

W
&

W
hitelocke

illiams

Agenda Page 119



FF1

FF1

FF1

FF1

FF1

FF18

FF20

FF22FF22

N
AT

U
R

AL

CS

B
E

A
U

TY
IM

P
LU

LS
E

Florida License #'s: Architecture/Interior Design: AA-C001123

4112 Cypress Street - Tampa, Florida  33607 - 813-879-6996
612 South Military Trail - Deerfield Beach, Florida  33442 - 954-428-9361

P-1

3

CONSULTING ENGINEERS, LLC

W
&

W
hitelocke

illiams

KEY PLAN
SCALE:  1/32" = 1'-0"P-1

1

P-1

2

Agenda Page 120



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eleventh Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 121



 

00983975-1   

RE:  Coral Springs Improvement District Increased Stormwater Assessments 

Dear Landowner: 

Enclosed is notification that the Coral Springs Improvement District Board of Supervisors 

will hold a public hearing July 23, 2018 to consider an increase in its annual assessment on 

benefitted property owners for restoration, reconstruction and operation of its water management 

system.  The system is a vital part of District infrastructure that provides flood protection for all 

District property owners and residents.  The reasons for this possible increase in stormwater 

assessments are: 

1. The Coral Springs Improvement District and its water management system are 

more than fifty (50) years old.  During the District’s lifetime, many of its canal 

banks have either eroded away or have been severely undercut, threatening adjacent 

residences and commercial property. Maintenance was deferred by previous 

Boards.  Between 2012 and 2018, this Board has undertaken a program of canal 

bank and waterway restoration costing over six million ($6,000,000) dollars.  The 

Board decreased the assessment three (3) times, because it was determined that our 

reserves were sufficient to pay for any repairs and storm related damage. 

2. During this same time period, the District and its residents experienced Hurricane 

Irma, a minimal storm on our coast.  The cost of clean-up and repair due to Irma of 

our stormwater management system is estimated to be two and half million dollars 

($2,500,000) and a substantial portion of that allocation has already been spent.  

Again, the costs of these efforts have further depleted District reserves.  The 

projected cost if we actually get hit with a category 3 hurricane is over five million 

($5,000,000) dollars. 

3. Repairs and parts replacement for aging District pump stations have cost nearly six 

hundred thousand ($600,000) dollars. 

All told, District costs to repair and restore our stormwater system have exceeded nine and 

one half million ($9,500,000) dollars and assessments for maintaining and operating the system 

are insufficient.  We have instead relied upon District reserve accounts.  However, those accounts 

have been severely depleted at this point.  The District would be severely hampered if struck by 

another hurricane or major pieces of equipment such as pump stations fail and have to be replaced.  

It is the Board’s responsibility to have sufficient reserves for any potential problems that may arise. 

  

Agenda Page 122



 

00983975-1   

We understand that no one likes increases in taxes or assessments.  But, in order to 

safeguard everyone’s property and maintain financial reserves adequate to pay the costs incurred 

when experiencing a catastrophic event such as a hurricane, the Board must consider this 

assessment increase.  All the Board members, like yourself, live in the district and will be paying 

the increase in assessments.  We do not take this action lightly, but we feel it is necessary, and as 

in the past as soon as our reserves are adequate, we will reduce the increase as much as possible. 

Sincerely, 

Dr. Martin Shank, President 

Coral Springs Improvement District  

Agenda Page 123



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Twelfth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 124



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12B. 
  

Agenda Page 125



Globaltech, Inc. 

CSID Engineer’s Report 

May 21, 2018 

 

 

PROJECTS UNDER CONTRACT 

 

 

WA #128 – Sodium Hypochlorite Tank 1 & 3 Replacement – In Progress 

 Authorization approved by Board – 10/23/17 

 Delivery scheduled week of 5/21/18 

 

WA #129 - Fluoride System Replacement – In Progress 

 Authorization approved by Board – 10/23/17 

 Poured all concrete pads and containment walls 

 Painted walls and ceiling 

 Connected Fluoride analyzer 

 All equipment delivered 

 Coating floors and walls week of 5/21/18 

 Installing equipment week of 5/28/18 

 

WA #131- HSP 7 Modifications – In Progress 

 Approved by Board – 1/22/18 

 Memo of understanding approved – 3/16/18 

 Completed modeling of high service pump system 

 Evaluate alternatives for HSP 7 

 Scheduling meeting with CSID to review results 

 

WA #132 – PW No. 6 - VFD Installation – In Progress 

 Approved by Board – 1/22/18 

 Control panel ordered March 30, 2018 

 Expected equipment delivery by mid-June. 
 

WA #133 - Facility Arc-Flash Study – In Progress 

 Preparing electrical systems models 

 Submitted additional data needs to CSID on 5/08/18 

 Preparing short circuit and arc flash calculations 

 Project approximately 3 weeks behind schedule. 
 

WA #134 – PW No. 9 – Redevelopment – In Progress 

 Approved by Board – 2/26/18. 

 Field work began 4/12/18  

 First acid treatment resulted in 20% performance improvement 

 Performed second chemical treatment (500 gallons of HCl) on 5/14/18 

 Airlifting and additional development performed week of 5/14/18 

 Will evaluate performance and make further recommendations. 

 

 

 
 

 

Agenda Page 126



Globaltech, Inc. 

CSID Engineer’s Report 

May 21, 2018 

 

PROJECTS UNDER CONTRACT (Cont.) 

 

WA #135 – DIW 20-inch Valve Replacement – In Progress 

 Approved by Board – 3/16/18 

 Valves delivered 5/14/18. 

 Anticipated installation following WA-136 
 

WA #136 – DIW Buried Valve Replacement – In Progress 

 Approved by Board – 3/16/18 

 Exploratory excavation performed 4/11 to confirm valve sizes and connections 

 Butterfly valves ordered 5/14/18 (will result in savings to CSID).  

 

WA #138 – Ground Storage Tank Hydraulic Assessment – In Progress 

 Approved by Board – 4/26/18 

 Gathered tank construction details 

 Discussed tank operation with staff 

 Completed preliminary model of tank mixing during 

 Investigation alternatives to improve in-tank mixing  
 

WA #139 – Generator Diesel Fuel Line Replacement – In Progress 

 Approved by Board – 4/26/18 

 Contacted Broward County regarding need for permit 

 Prepared Purchase Order with Lutz Petroleum  

 Began preparing permit applications 

 

WA #141 – Plant D Repair – In Progress 

 Approved by Board – 4/26/18 

 Prepared subcontracts for WGI and WesTech  

 Gathering quotes for slab demolition and removal 

 

WA #142 – Lift Station 13 & 17 Rehabilitation – In Progress 

 Approved by Board – 4/26/18 

 Prepared Purchase Order to take over by-pass pumping 

 Prepared design and ordering collar and lid for LS-13 (2-month lead) 

 Clearing landscaping and gathering underground information for LS-17 

 

PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT 

 

WA #143 – Site 12 Canal Bank Restoration – On May Board 

 

WA #137 – High Service Pump Modifications (No. 1 & 2) – on June Board 

 Modeled high service pump system under WA 141 MOU 

 Developing alternatives and costs for HSP 1 & 2  

 

WA #140 - DIW Monitor Well Replacement – June Board 
 

Agenda Page 127



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12C. 
  

Agenda Page 128



Coral Springs Improvement District

Utility Billing Work Orders

2018 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 42 33 27 44 146

Mis-Reads 1 1 0 1 3

Meter Calibration Tests 0 0 0 0 0

Coral Springs Improvement District

Utility Billing Work Orders

2017 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL

Customer Inquiry requiring work order 24 27 25 38 35 34 26 30 33 29 15 23 339

Mis-Reads 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 4

Meter Calibration Tests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Coral Springs Improvement District

Utility Billing Work Orders

2016 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL

Agenda Page 129



Page 1 of 3 
 

                                                                    

                          

                           May Report to the Board of Directors for the Water Plant 

                               Report Includes Updates through 5/9/2018 

Train one’s recent performance decline 

  In early February the salt passage started to slowly increase in the permeate coming from the second stage. 

We began monitoring it closely and by early March it was well above tolerable levels. This train was due for a 

cleaning which was already scheduled. We performed the cleaning and the salt rejection did not improve in 

the second stage like it did in the first. In fact it became much worse. 

  We sent two second stage tail membranes to AWC to be autopsied. The conclusion was permeate 

backpressure. We have put a few steps in place, such as a valve position SOP for cleanings, to prevent this 

from reoccurring however we are still working with the engineers to identify the exact cause. 

  In the meantime we have been discussing replacements and selected which manufacturer and model would 

work best. We came up with an idea to move these damaged membranes from the tail end of the second 

stage where the contaminants are more concentrated to the lead position in the first stage where they are 

much less concentrated. We opened up 26 vessels and moved 52 membranes around in order to accomplish 

this. We documented the serial numbers for all of the membranes that were moved so that when we decide 

to replace them we will know exactly where they are. The results are exactly what we had hoped for. The 

overall water quality produced by train #1 has improved by 62.5%. This should buy us quite a bit of time 

before we have to spend money to replace any of these membranes.  

  Just to be clear the overall water quality being produced by our plant is exactly what it has always been. 

We accomplish this by slightly reducing the bypass % from what we had it set at in the past in order to 

maintain our optimal water quality parameters. 

Train feed motor bearings 

  We decided to perform testing on the harmonics coming from the VFD’s to these motors since the bearings 

are wearing faster than they should be. This test was performed by Pedro and Nico from Globaltech on 4/2. 

Based on the results it seems that current is arcing between the shaft and the bearings potentially being the 

cause of our issue. We had Condo Electric replace and insulate the bearings on one of our motors and we have 

installed it on train #3 and it is up and running. Nico came back out and performed some testing and he 

believes it has made a significant improvement. Time will tell if this in fact was our issue all along.  

Agenda Page 130



Page 2 of 3 
 

 

Fluoridation system upgrade (Grant)  

 The project is moving along pretty well now. All of the equipment is in and everything that can be installed at 

this time has been. Some of these items include the analyzer, trenching and installing the new injection point, 

all of the concrete work, electrical, etc. The concrete will be fully cured by May 15th and they will begin 

applying the specialized coating in the room. Once that dries the pump skid, scale, and tanks will be installed. 

We should have no problem spending the $151,922.50 left in grant funds by the deadline. 

      

 

Update on Well 9’s rehab 

 Centerline Drilling has performed the initial chemical treatment, air lifting, and over pumping techniques and 

have only noticed a 20% increase in specific capacity. We are hoping for a 100% increase in specific capacity. 

We planned for this when the WA was drafted and added three treatments to the budget just in case. They 

will go back in with a more aggressive acid treatment and see if they can bring that 20% up to where it needs 

to be. We are also evaluating the wellhead flange to see if it can be re used. It was in pretty rough shape but 

we are sandblasting it to see what sort of shape it’s really in. 

 

Consumer Confidence Report 

 We completed the 2017 CCR well ahead of schedule. The tri folds were dropped off at the mailing center and 

were shipped out. They were delivered to every customer by the second week in May. The deadline to have 

them to each customer wasn’t until July 1st. The last step is to complete the required report and submit it to 

the Health Department in order to closeout this project. 

 

Agenda Page 131



Page 3 of 3 
 

Projects with Globaltech 

 Hypochlorite tank replacement – WA 128 approved in October. Underway 

 Fluoridation system upgrade- WA 129 approved in November. Underway 

 High service pump #7 flushing line- WA 131 letter of understanding for the shift in 

direction approved in March. Underway 

 Adding a VFD to well 6 –WA 132 approved in January. Underway 

 Rehabilitation of well 9 – WA 134 approved in February. Underway 

 Replacement of high service pump #2- WA to be presented after the HSP system eval. 

 Storage tank influent corrections- WA 138 for a hydraulic analysis approved at the April 

meeting. A WA for the actual repairs will follow 

 Underground diesel tank transfer lines upgrade- WA 139 approved in April. Underway 

Agenda Page 132



 

 Coral Springs Improvement District 

Wastewater Department Report 

May 2018 Board Meeting 

 

 

Ongoing Projects  
 

Globaltech has notified the District that they are progressing with the following approved work 

authorizations (WA):  

 

 

WA # 133– Arc Flash Study 

 Contractor is entering electrical data information into the Modeling Software.  The Modeling 

Software calculates many things including Arc Flash Incident Energy.  The engineers will look 

at the results of these calculations and decide if they need more information or if they can 

move on to using the data to generate reports. The engineers have requested additional 

information from CSID staff to complete the Modeling Software calculations.  Some of the 

benefits of a comprehensive Arc Flash Study are listed below: 

 Documents current facility conditions of the electrical system. 

 Documents all electrical system components. 

 Identifies proper level of PPE required. 

 Ensures a safe work environment in compliance with all National Fire Protection 

Association (NFPA) 70, NFPA 70E and Occupational Safety and Health 

Administration (OSHA) regulations.   

 

WA # 141 – Plant D Repairs 

 GlobalTech was given notice on April 27, 2018, to proceed with Plant D repairs.  GlobalTech 

has informed staff that they will be setting up an onsite visit with WesTech to inspect Plant D 

to determine what equipment can or cannot be reused.  GlobalTech informed CSID staff that 

demolition will start within a month.  

 

WA # 135 – Replacement of Two 20” Gate Valves on Injection Well 2 Bypass Line 

 GlobalTech was given notice on March 21, 2018, to proceed with the Replacement of two 20” 

Gate Valve on Injection Well 2 Bypass Line.  GlobalTech has ordered the valves and 

installation is projected to be in the middle of June 2018.  

Agenda Page 133



 

 

 

WA # 136– Replacement of Two Buried Butterfly Valves  

 GlobalTech was given notice on March 21, 2018, to proceed with the Replacement of 2 buried 

Valves at the Deep Well Pump Station.  GlobalTech has ordered the valves and installation is 

projected to be in the middle of June 2018. 

 
 

 

Pending Work Authorizations That Need To Be Approved 
 

Monitoring Well 4 Work Authorization is scheduled to be presented to the Board in May 2018.  

 

Agenda Page 134



   Coral Springs Improvement District   

      Drainage Report May 21, 2018 

Board of Supervisors Meeting  

Hurricane Irma: 

Debris removal is near completion. Approx. 3874 CY of debris was cleared from District waters 

and right of way. 

  

 
      

 

Agenda Page 135



    Drainage Report May 21, 2018     pg.2 

 

Flood Control 

Canal levels are approx. 6’8” for the East basin and 7’2” for the West basin. 

Rainfall recorded is 1.04” for the month so far.  
 

 
 

 

6.44

6.87

6.78

6.64

6.69

6.9

7.19

7.46

6.85

6.59

6.19

5.74

6.67

6.9

7.05

6.84
6.79

6.75

7.14

7.38

7.78

7.21

7.3

6.97

6.47

7.48

MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY

R

A

I

N

F

A

L

L

I

N

C

H

E

S

C

A

N

A

L

L

E

V

E

L

I

N

N

G

V

D

2

9

F

E

E

T

CANAL LEVELS AND RAINFALL
avg. monthly levels and total rainfall

RAIN EAST BASIN WEST BASIN 6.5 NGVD 29 PERMIT LEVEL

Agenda Page 136



                                           Drainage Report May 21, 2018     pg.3 
 

 

 

Iguana Management: May 2017 through May 2018 

 

6.44

6.67

6.9

7.48

MAY MAY

R

A

I

N

F

A

L

L

I

N

C

H

E

S

C

A

N

A

L

L

E

V

E

L

I

N

N

G

V

D

2

9

F

E

E

T

AVG. BASIN LEVEL AND TOTAL RAINFALL
2017 vs 2018

EAST BASIN WEST BASIN RAIN 6.5 NGVD 29 PERMIT LEVEL

9 10

16

7

3

36

49

27
24

0
2 1

44 5
7

4
6

4 5

1 0 0 1
3 2

7

3 4 5
2

4 4 4 4
2

6 6
4

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Iguana's controlled

East Sta West Sta Admin Bldg

Agenda Page 137



 

Drainage Report May 21, 2018     pg.4 

 

Culvert Inspection: 

This project is complete.  

 

RFQ/RFP/WA: 

Replacement of two (2) aquatic herbicide spray rig and equipment-budgeted item for FY 2018-

request to approve 

 

WA-143 Site 12 canal bank re-stabilization-see engineers report-request to approve 

 

Culvert pipe cleaning/approach dredging: 

Development of an RFP for removal of accumulation of muck/sediment from 

upstream/downstream pipe approaches within canals is underway  

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 138



 

Water Distribution and Wastewater Collection 

Department Report 

5-21-18 board Meeting  

 

 There were 12 water breaks in the month of April. Still on par with the expected, Post phase one 

service projects projections.  

 

 AP Engineering has continued phase two of our water line replacement project, still working in 

the lower half of cypress run. I will have an updated progress report at the meeting    

 

 By the time of this meeting, Globaltech would have mobilized equipment to lift station 13 to 

begin rehabilitations. Rick should have other pertinent information regarding the project with 

his report  

 

 LMK pipe renewals lift station 2 basin rehab has continued at a good pace. Most of the cut in 

work is done. They are almost ready to line the main lines. we have already seen major 

improvements regarding Flow and Infiltration.   

   

 

 

 

 

 

  

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 139



 

Maintenance Department Report 

 Board Meeting, 3:00 pm on 05/21/2018 

 

 

Wastewater Department: 

 We were working on the F plant replacing an electronic probe sensor and the wiring.  

 

 In the old PLC room in the surge tank panel, we removed some wires to the new control panel in 

Headworks for a programmed work in the bar screen system building. 

 

 We created a control panel to turn on the exhaust fans in automatic mode with according with 

the temp. 

 

 In the mechanical works, we replace an underground 4-inch valve in the WWP, in front of plant E.  

 

Water Department: 

 We are working in the cleaning system in 4-inch valve to fix or replace. 

 

 New lighting pole was installed in the chemical tank and wiring.  

 

 Lighting rod was fixed in the transfer pump #1.   

 

 

 And other normal repairs and maintenance in the equipment’s, painting the areas and 

conditioning.  

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 140


	Agenda
	2nd - Minutes
	4th - Financials
	5th - Resolution 2018-10
	Proposed Budget
	6th - Engagement Letter with Keefe McCullough
	7th - Placeholder for D 2018-02
	8th - Florida Spectrum
	9th - Work Authorization 143
	10th - Ratification of CVS Permit
	11th - Assessment Letter
	12B - Engineer's Status Report
	12C - Department Reports
	Billing Work Orders
	Water Plant Report
	Wastewater Plant Report
	Stormwater Report
	Field Report
	Maintenance Report



